
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, JULY 15, 2024 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Meeting) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. FY23-24 Audit Presentation (Chad Cook, FORVIS)
b. Parking Discussion (City Manager’s Office)

4. NEW BUSINESS
d. NC Freedom Fest Request (Doug McGrath)
e. Boards and Commissions Vacancies Discussion (Deputy City Clerk)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Pastor Kathye Gamble Batts, New Stoney Hill United Holy Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A1. Minutes of the Recessed Meeting of June 5, 2024
A2. Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 11, 2024

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Resolution in Memory of Mayor Alfonzo “Al” King  
C. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by John Albert as an Employee of the City of 

Goldsboro for More Than 13 Years  
D. Goldsboro/Wayne Purple Heart Proclamation 
E. Kinetic Minds Presentation (Eskabonna Henderson) 
F. DGAF Scholarship Recipients Presentation (Gary Packer) 
G. Communities Supporting Schools Presentation (Selena Bennett) 
H. United Way Presentation (Sherry Archibald) 

VI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS
I. Annual National Night Out Proclamation

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS
J. Z-4-24 Rosewood Outdoor Power Equipment and Supply – Located at the corner of W. US 70 Highway

and Carolina Circle (Planning) – Continued from June 17, 2024   
K. Contiguous Annexation Petition-Oak Forest Holdings, LLC. – Corner of Central Heights Rd. and N. Oak

Forest Rd. (Planning) 
L. Revision to the Unified Development Ordinance, Article 6.5 Stormwater Management for New

Development and Approval of the City of Goldsboro Stormwater Management Plan (Engineering) 
M. Public Hearing to Consider an Economic Development Agreement with Team Foods USA, Inc. (City

Manager’s Office) 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

IX. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
N. Appointment of Deputy Finance Officer, Teresa (Terrie) L. Webber (Finance)
O. Amend Contract for Audit Services for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 (Finance)

c.   Center Street Jam Concert Series – Temporary Street Closure - Addendum (Downtown Development)

5:10 P.M. - moved to COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET



2 

P. Request authorization to purchase new Solid Waste Rear Loader, Side Loader (1-Arm), and Automated 
Leaf Vac Trucks (Public Works)  

Q. Resolution To Acquire Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Properties (City Manager’s Office)  
R. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

X. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
 

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



Report to the City Council
Financial Results Following Fiscal Year 2023 Audit

City of Goldsboro, North Carolina / July 15, 2024

w.s. item a



© 2024 Forvis Mazars, LLP. All rights reserved.

Audit Matters

• We have completed the audit of the financial statements of the City of Goldsboro as of June 30, 2023.

• Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and perform an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance the financials are free from material misstatement.

• Services Performed:
• Audit of the 2023 basic financial statements
• Compliance audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

Title2 July 15, 2024



© 2024 Forvis Mazars, LLP. All rights reserved.

General Fund – Fund Balance Summary

Title3 July 15, 2024

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Total fund balance - General Fund 10,787,621$      9,084,558$        10,611,159$      21,407,906$      27,339,238$      

Less:
Nonspendable fund balance (187,925)            (257,212)            (255,407)            (425,801)            (760,312)            
Restricted fund balance (6,313,654)         (5,357,362)         (5,610,552)         (7,946,741)         (8,211,391)         

Fund balance available for appropriation 4,286,042$        3,469,984$        4,745,200$        13,035,364$      18,367,535$      

Total expenditures and routine transfers 42,168,335$      41,642,852$      37,757,916$      35,124,968$      37,645,366$      

Available fund balance as a percentage of
 expenditures and transfers to other funds 10.2% 8.3% 12.6% 37.1% 48.8%



© 2024 Forvis Mazars, LLP. All rights reserved.

General Fund – Fund Balance Summary

Title4 July 15, 2024

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $45,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

GENERAL FUND

Fund balance available for appropriation Total expenditures and routine transfers



© 2024 Forvis Mazars, LLP. All rights reserved.

Utility Fund Summary

Title5 July 15, 2024

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Revenues (budgetary basis) 17,081,402$      19,372,715$      19,829,707$      19,736,202$      22,830,483$         

Expenditures (budgetary basis) 19,380,053$      18,747,440$      15,589,547$      14,569,058$      14,338,736$         

Working capital* 2,637,200$        4,183,341$        7,294,726$        13,053,741$      21,859,568$         

* - Working capital consists of current assets (excluding restricted cash) minus current liabilities



© 2024 Forvis Mazars, LLP. All rights reserved.

Utility Fund Summary

Title6 July 15, 2024

0

5000000

10000000

15000000

20000000

25000000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

UTILITY FUND

Revenues (budgetary basis) Expenditures (budgetary basis) Working capital



Contact

Forvis Mazars

The information set forth in this presentation contains the analysis and conclusions of the author(s) based upon his/her/their research and 
analysis of industry information and legal authorities. Such analysis and conclusions should not be deemed opinions or conclusions by 
Forvis Mazars or the author(s) as to any individual situation as situations are fact-specific. The reader should perform their own analysis 
and form their own conclusions regarding any specific situation. Further, the author(s)’ conclusions may be revised without notice with 
or without changes in industry information and legal authorities.

© 2024 Forvis Mazars, LLP. All rights reserved.

Chad Cook
Director
P: 336.822.4494
chad.cook@us.forvismazars.com

John Frank
Partner
P: 336.889.5156
john.frank@us.forvismazars.com



w.s. item c







Military & 1st Responders 
Appreciation Festival
September 7, 2024

w.s. item d



NC Freedom Fest
• NC Freedom Fest began in 2017 as Wings of Wayne…

• Created & powered by a nonprofit – the Goldsboro Elks
• Designed to bring the base and community together in a family-friendly 

environment in Downtown Goldsboro so we could say, “Thank You” to those who 
serve.

• Following 2019, the City of Goldsboro wanted to take over the event
• That led to the formation of a new nonprofit, rebranded as NC Freedom Fest

• Collaborative effort by; the City of Goldsboro, the County of Wayne, SJAFB, the Elks, 
DGDC, MAC, the Paramount, United Way, Visit Goldsboro, and more… 

• Powered by a “One Community” model
• The cost of the event is funded through a sponsorship campaign with an Annual 

operating budget exceeding $120,000
• The event requires 194 volunteers who contribute approximately 4,700 man hours



NC Freedom Fest
• FREE
• Car & Bike Show
• Shuttle service
• Static displays
• Art contest & awards
• Food trucks galore!
• F-15E Flyover

• Family-friendly
• Kids zone
• Family inclusive area
• Streetfair vendors
• Military appreciation 

awards
• Live music – national 

touring artists



• Powered by…



NC Freedom Fest
• Award winning festival

• Duke Energy – Citizenship & Service Award
• NC Main Street – Best Downtown Special 

Event
• The Elks (national level – 2 years in a row)
• Spirit of Hope Award (DoD level)

• is a United States military award presented by the Department of Defense. The 
award was created based on the contributions of entertainer Bob Hope to 
members of the military, and is annually awarded to individuals or organizations 
whose work benefits the quality of life of service members and their 
families. Each branch of service is limited to one award per year, and we received 
it!  You can learn more about the award at - 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Spirit_of_Hope_Award.  



NC Freedom Fest
• Artists

• Northbound
• Brooke McBride
• Headliner – 

• Parmalee
• National touring artists
• Digital following 

• 5.4 Million
• Three #1 songs in 2023



NC Freedom Fest
• Marketing…

• Grassroots marketing committee
• Friends of FF

• Sponsor / merchant engagement program
• Base engagement

• Friends
• FSS
• PA

• TWC – 30 second ad running 500 times (minimum)
• Curtis Media
• Social media
• Official Program
• Billboards
• Posters
• Bring a friend



Social Media Impact

• 829% increase profile visits
• 100k reach (768% increase)
• 2.2k interactions (335% 
increase)
• 207 new followers

• 556 new followers (553% increase)
• 7.3k page visits (339% increase)
• 1010k reach (1.9k%)

* Numbers reflect a total from Facebook and Instagram

30 Day Numbers

Q2 2024 v 2023



NC Freedom Fest



MINUTES OF THE RECESSED MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 5, 2024 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, recessed their Regular Meeting on June 3, 2024 to meet on 
June 5, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. in Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street with attendance as follows:  

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

Roll Call. 

Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present:  Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 

Mayor Gaylor made comments regarding the budget. 

Interim City Manager Livingston shared comments regarding the proposed budget. 

Mrs. Gwynn shared the presentation attached as Exhibit A. Mrs. Gwynn shared comments regarding the proposed budget 
to include the following comments: On the Previously Proposed Expenditure Cuts General Fund slide, we would be able 
to cut $248,000 out of the general fund which is a little over a penny difference in the property tax rate. The proposed 
budget came in with a 15-cent proposed property tax increase so this would impact that budget by a little over a penny. 
She shared the revised proposed tax increase is 11.8 cents and needs to be in increments of a half.  

Interim City Manager Livingston shared the Topics for Discussion General Fund slide. He shared public safety is driving 
the budget. He asked Council to go through the list (Topics for Discussion General Fund) and say yes or no to each item. 

1. Implementation of Fire raises – Council consensus was yes.

2. COLA 2.5% (Full year) – Council consensus was yes.

a. Council discussed the proposed 2.5% COLA.

3. New FTE – Comm. Rel. Dev. Specialist (100% funded by HUD) – Council consensus was yes.

4. New FTE – Minimum Housing Specialist (Planning) – Council consensus was yes.

a. Council discussed the position, abandoned homes and crime.

5. Demolition (Planning) – Council consensus was yes.

a. Council discussed demolition.

6. Employee $400 Net Bonus (NOT included in Manager’s Rec.)

a. Council discussed adjusting the proposed bonus and will continue discussion later during the meeting.

7. NPO Funding (United Way) – Council consensus was to fund NPO’s at $50,000.

a. Council discussed the NPO funding and using the United Way to manage the funds for the non-profits.
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked if NPO funding could focus on those organizations that focus on crime
prevention. Council discussed the United Way’s 10% administration fee. Council discussed outcomes of
the current NPO’s funded by the city. Interim City Manager Livingston shared he has asked the United
Way to come to the meeting in July to discuss the current and next fiscal year.

8. Comprehensive Land Use Plan (Planning) – ½ year – Council consensus was yes at $87,500.

a. Council discussed the Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

9. Pavement Conditions Index Plan – Council consensus was yes at $75,000.

a. Council discussed the Pavement Conditions Index Plan. The plan was not in the original proposed budget
but was added to possibly get bonds and confirm the conditions of city streets.

Item A1



cd

R

o

CZ

ti

M

0o. 

o

o

OE

0

3

OrA

toNo

cd

C

a) 

V

N0

OO

F

y

U

Yto

i

T! 

Vy

i 

il

cofA

4% 

C

ami

d

a 

14v

o

Y

a 

U

2! 

a

F

OfL

Q. 

Y

r. O

3

cz
0

o

czcl

U

Q. 

cz

U

A

to

U

to

O

N

cC* 

c'

s

w

Ei

Go

cl

C,

3

O

D

c 

O

U

b

d

U

as' 

O

rAcn

on

Oa) 

o3

U

3

y

V

72

cd

cl

v

U

g3

y

cl

M

4

Q. 

0 °' 

3

w

w

1=

a, 

x

A

0

O

w

42

o

0

C') 

O

N

czs

b

ci

03

Ui

w

N

U

4

C

sU, 

V

o

o° 

o

a, 

3

c

4- 

4

a°

A) 

C7

ani

ami

U

d

CAy

o

V

o

cn

Q

cn

O

O

I

i

b

0

cl

U

o

o

2

E

y

tO

OU

bOq

U

0

b9u

U

rn

O

a) 6

F

0

oOiD

Oy

ice. 

Q

CC3'''+ 

77

2'

b>, 

O

th

y

U

v

O

0

O

0. 

U

O

abi

U

O

OU

ai

f 

O

O— 

c 

O

a 

Z

O

U

a' 

C7

3

o

U

o

o

U

U

2 

d

U

2

0

U

0cd
s

a. 

U

w

w

x

p

cd

R

o

CZ

ti

C,

3

0o. 

o

O
E

0

3

OrA

toN
o

cd

C

a) 

V

N0

OO

F

y

U

Y
to

i

T! 

Vy

i 

il

cofA

4% 

C

ami

d

a 

14v

o

4, 

O

O
fL

U

a..° 

r. O

U

N

cC* 

Ei

cl

O

N

O

O

U

b

o

U

b

rAcn

U

3

72

cd

9

i 

0", 

0
c i2









Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 11, 2024 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Special Meeting to discuss gun violence in Wayne 
County and the City of Goldsboro on Tuesday, June 11, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North 
Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina.  

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

The invocation was provided by Father David Wyly and was followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  

Roll Call. 

Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present:  Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
Mike West, Police Chief 

Mayor Gaylor opened the meeting and shared comments regarding the recent uptick in crime. Mayor Gaylor also 
recognized members from the Commission on Community Relations and Development, Sherrif Larry Pierce and other 
dignitaries in the room.  

Chief Mike West shared the presentation attached as Exhibit A. 

He shared the following: Part 1 crimes are made up of 8 other crimes: violent crimes or homicide, rape, robbery, 
aggravated assault, property crimes or B&E's, larceny, vehicle theft and arson.   

For seven consecutive years, from 2015 to 2021, we dropped crime consecutively for those seven years. In 2022, we 
saw a 13% increase and in 2023, we saw another 21% increase. For 2022 and 2023, we've increased 34% in our part one 
crime. Part 1 crimes, violent crimes, have kind of steadied over the last four years. Part 1 crimes make up roughly about 
86-87% of our overall crime. Violent crime makes up about 13 to 14% and that's been pretty consistent the last four years. 
For 2024 we're trending for about a 14% increase in overall Part 1 crimes. Our violent crimes are trending down just a 
little. We are trending now to come in at about 11% violent crime.  

Chief West reviewed the maps in the presentation and shared information regarding ShotSpotter. He shared that in 
2023, there were 963 alerts throughout the year in that area, that's 5,318 rounds fired. That's averaging 5 rounds per 
incident in 2023. 2024 year to date, so far, we've had 299 alerts, 1,498 rounds fired. That's roughly about 5 rounds per 
incident.  

He shared the following comments regarding recent gun violence: On Saturday, May 25th, 300 block of East Elm St. 
at a residence, at approximately 6:00 PM, one individual was shot during an argument or confrontation and died of his 
injuries. On Wednesday, June 5th in the 1600 block of South John Street at a residence, two individuals, known to each 
other, engage in what we believe to be an assault. Both subjects were armed, they shot each other. One victim was then 
taken by a private vehicle over to the 300 block of Hollowell Street where he died of his injuries, the other victim 
survived. On Friday, June 7th, 1800 block of Ash Street at the Food Lion, at approximately 1:30 PM, individuals known to 
each other, confront each other inside the business and as they both began to exit the business, one turns, shoots the other 
one, almost killing him instantly. Saturday, June 8th, 1800 block of Wayne Memorial Drive, at Burger King, 
approximately 9:49 AM, one individual was injured when he accidentally discharged his firearm and shot himself.   

He thanked Sheriff Pierce for attending the meeting and shared information regarding mutual aid with the Wayne 
County Sherrif’s office and comments regarding the former REACT team. He also shared information regarding other 
agencies that assist the Goldsboro Police Department including: the U.S. Attorney's office, SBI, ALE, ATF, U.S. Marshall 
and SBI.  

He shared the short-term plan of what's going to get us through this is you're going to see more officers in these 
neighborhoods and you're going to see deputies with us. Chief West shared comments regarding seeking the communities 
and local organizations assistance. He shared we have to do something to get this under control and the community has a 
lot of resources that we need to utilize. He shared we've got to have programs in place we've got to go after and help the 

Item A2



Page 2 of 5 
 

young people. He shared when we dropped the crime for seven years we had SRO's in the schools and he wants the 
officers back in the schools because his SRO’s will be engaged with these young people during the week and we'll also be 
engaging them on the weekends and during the summer.   

He shared we have got to do something but not just law enforcement is going to fix it, we can manage it and we can 
work through it, but we've got to have the community step up. City leaders have got to step up, community leaders have 
got to step up. We've got to get into the schools now and get these young people and mentor them, get them through parks 
and recreation during the summer. He shared he always hears people say there's nothing to do in Goldsboro, but there's a 
lot of people that can't get to where they need to go to participate in things so there's a transportation issue but he knows 
we're smart enough to figure it out and what he’s asking for from Council and also from the community is to help us get to 
where we need to be. 

Mayor Gaylor asked the Chief what he needed from him. Chief West shared the thing he needs most is 
transparency.  

Councilwoman Taylor asked about the REACT team. Chief West shared information regarding the team.  

Councilman White discussed holding the Goldsboro Housing Authority Board and CEO accountable for crime in 
the housing authority.  

Councilwoman Jones asked about the number of crime hot spots. Chief West shared there were approximately 5 
areas. ShotSpotter was also discussed.  

Councilwoman Weeks asked about the Housing Authority paying for police presence. She also asked about the 
abatement process. Chief West shared several years ago, the police received a 3-year grant which allowed them to put 
officers in the housing authority. He shared when the grant ran out, they maintained the officers and called it a 
housing unit. He shared staffing has affected the police officer presence at the housing authority. Chief West also 
shared the abatement process.  

 Councilwoman Taylor asked what percentage of crimes are coming from the housing authority. Chief West 
shared approximately 70% of the ShotSpotter data comes from those communities. 

Councilwoman Taylor and Chief West discussed the police department serving warrants.    

Mayor and Councilmember’s Comments 

Councilman White shared the following: Thank you to everybody for coming out to participate and show their 
concern for our community. Crime has been a problem in our city for a while now and I think that we're failing to 
address the root cause of our crime problem, which is poverty and the underperforming schooling system. Lack of 
economic development is also a recourse of our crime problem and we're still moving forward without a plan to 
revitalize our low to moderately income neighborhoods. We must be intentional with improving the entire city, we 
must make a concerted effort to not continue to leave the South side of Goldsboro behind while others move forward.  
The plan to beef up the Police department is great and is greatly needed. I understand that but I disagree with chief 
just a little bit and we can't police our way out of this. It has to be a concerted plan that everybody is involved, and 
everybody has some type of glimmer of hope. I think that we need to hold the parents of these teenagers and juveniles 
accountable. I don't know what that looks like but when I was going to school it was called truancy, so when you 
couldn't get the kid, you got the parent, and the parent held the kid accountable so we must begin to go back to things 
that work. We need to begin to hold the Housing Authority accountable for the actions that happened on their 
property. 

Councilwoman Weeks shared the following: I echo everything you said. This is really not a police issue, but this 
is a community issue, it's going to take all of us, it takes a village. Often, I'm with the men in jail on Thursdays and 
they will say, Miss Beverly, I did not have a father figure, I don't know what it's like to have a mother figure and so 
we've got to start rallying around the youth in our city as well and start mentoring them. It's going to take all of us, the 
churches, the businesses, everyone needs to get involved. 100%, I believe we need to hold the Goldsboro Housing 
Authority accountable, and they need to step up and be a part of the solution. Prayer changes things and if you believe 
in prayer, I'm here to tell you that it works. I don't have all the solutions. As a matter of fact, I'm sitting up here and 
I'm looking at so many wise people in this audience and I think wow I would really love to hear what you have to say. 
I don't have all the solutions, but I want to tell you I serve a God who has the solutions and I say it is time for our 
people, the people of this city, to cry out because he says if my people who are called by my name will humble 
themselves and pray and turn from their wicked ways, I will hear from them and I will heal their land and so I'm 
asking our city to join together in prayer. I know it's going to take solutions; it's going to take coming together with 
the Police department and Sheriff's department but I'm telling you one thing that's wrong with this city is we have 
turned from God and until we turn back towards God we're going to have an even worse situation.  

Mayor Pro Tem Matthews thanked Councilman White and Councilwoman Weeks for their comments and shared 



Page 3 of 5 
 

the following: First thing that I want to say is, I represent the South end of Goldsboro. I grew up in the South end of 
Goldsboro. My heart is and forever will be with those people on the South end of Goldsboro so when I speak, my 
words will be primarily focused towards them and what we can do to better serve them. As I look out in this audience, 
I see a little bit of everybody, from a little bit of everywhere and I want to be surprised but crime shouldn't have to 
creep across streets and districts for everybody to care. I need you to care all the time and I need you to invest all the 
time because that's what's going to change things. I attended a rally last year and so many people were outraged, and 
they showed up and some people came and stood before this Council and said I'm going to come to every meeting 
until you do something. That's the accountability that we need as leaders, that's the accountability that you need as 
residents and community leaders in your respective organizations. I see a little bit of every organization in here. I need 
you to show up all the time. I want to specifically speak to this board like I have done for every year that I've sat here. 
What are we going to do because there have been initiatives that have come before this board, there have been ideas 
and solutions but because of the messenger, the message was missed and here we are again. There are mothers, I 
talked to a couple today. I talked to a father today. I've talked to nieces, brothers, family and friends of these victims.  
How do we plan to support them? I'm all for stopping the violence but there's some people that are hurting and how 
do we support them? How do we offer support? How do we show up for them? I'm not expecting Chief West and 
Sheriff Pierce to dispatch their troops out into these streets. I'm expecting to dispatch all of us into the streets because 
some of us go but it's not enough. It's not enough to see Richard Taylor show up on Mondays for an after-school 
program in the Grand because let's call it the Grand because that's what it is. I don't want us to keep talking about this 
neighborhood on the South end and then let's give it names. It's called the Grand at Day Point, that's what it is and 
those people in there are somebody. They're special. We want to talk about God, they're all God's children. He loves 
us all, but they need opportunities. They need access to quality stores, grocery, gas, all the things, so while we 
welcome economic development into our community, we ought to hold our developers to a certain standard that says 
no more on the other end, let's go down here on the South end because those people need that. I will stand in front of 
anybody and say we will not abate that store down there on the South end, not yet. Why, because then they'll have 
nothing. So, why don't we pull our resources together and Chief is working on this and thank you Chief for working 
on setting up a meeting with that store owner to say how can we support you, how can we upfit this store, how can we 
get these dusty Laffy Taffy’s and old expired sodas off your shelves so our people got something, because after 6:00 
the buses don't run. Some of our people, that's all they’ve got. We’ve got to figure out what that looks like and I'm 
calling on all y'all to make it happen. I'm just one voice and one vote and oftentimes I'm out heard, and I'm 
outnumbered in the votes, and I can't get much done, but with you I can. So, I'm asking this board what are we going 
to do to support these families. I heard one father say today sometimes all it takes is just a phone call to say I was 
thinking about you. You lost your son and the one thing that you want is for somebody to call and say, I was thinking 
about you. We can make all these grandiose statements and posts and it can be shared far and wide but until we get 
into the weeds of it and take some action, ain't much going to change. I also want to put some pressure on these 
organizations that are sent to help. Now is the time, now has been the time. I don't want to see any more bodies hitting 
the ground in any area of this city, but I know it's going to take more than these folks right here to make it happen 
because we’ve got ideas. But I want to hear from you, so I want to invite all of you to hang around a little while, 
because I want to hear from you on the steps after we get done here because you can't say anything right here in this 
setting but you’ve got a voice and I want to hear it so I want you to meet me on the steps and let's talk about. I'll stay 
here as long as you want to stay here but from that meeting something has to come out of it. I want you guys to hold 
us accountable, keep showing up, keep applying pressure, keep inviting us to your events. People say prayer vigils 
don't work, marches don't work. I'm willing to do anything at this point, any and everything. I talked about a curfew. 
Some people say what would a curfew help. It'll send a clear message that we are sick and tired of it, that's what it'll 
do and that's the one thing that we can do immediately. Policing is going to take some time. That's not an easy button, 
but I can implement a curfew that tells you I'm sick and tired of it and I'm going to take whatever extreme measure it 
takes to clean up some of these streets. If I had my way, I'd get this gun show out of our city that's coming up this 
weekend. District 4, I love you. There is a survey that has been circling around for the past 6 to 9 months now. There's 
been very few responses. I've shared it on my Councilwoman page and for those of you who are not following it, 
please follow that because I'm always sharing what we're doing and I'm sharing some things that I'm doing in the 
district and you're always welcome to come and be a part of those events but a lot of that survey said people were 
scared and we kind of heard that tonight, right. Some of you may be scared. I don't even know how I feel honestly but 
I want you to take that survey because what it does is, it helps us address the root cause, like Councilman White talked 
about because it's not just about the guns. We’ve got some mental health, we’ve got some education, but I know my 
folks on the South end, who I love dearly, they don't have access and I appreciate those of you who have brought sand 
to the beach. Thank you. There are some other questions I will pose at a later date, but I want to encourage you to stay 
behind. I have let the Council know that some organizations plan to stay behind so some of us will be there to hear 
you. Also, to the individuals that have been affected by this in any regard, please don't hesitate to let us know what 
you need and by God, if I can't do nothing else, I can call and check on you. If you know those family members, let us 
know how we can help them and how we can serve them while they transition through this difficult time. Thank you 
for being here and I love you and I'm still going to stand strong on, there is gold in Goldsboro. 

Councilwoman Taylor shared the following: The thing I wanted to talk to you tonight was about accountability. 



Page 4 of 5 
 

When I decided to run for this seat for District 3, I knew we faced long standing issues. A lot of times I think of my 
part of District 3 as the forgotten areas. These problems we have, they didn't just start yesterday. They've been 
building up for years due to our acceptance of less than what we deserve. We must adopt a proactive mindset, 
recognizing that change is both needed and warranted. Just because a neighborhood has always been a certain way for 
years doesn't mean it has to stay that way. By looking at the bigger picture, you'll see a path forward, even if it's not 
always clear. This evening, I want to talk about accountability. Not just for myself, but for our city, and for our 
citizens. Accountability to me means taking responsibility for our actions, recognizing that while we have the power 
to cause problems, we also have the power to fix them. If we want change, we must hold ourselves accountable and 
ensure others are held accountable too. If you contact me as your District 3 Rep and I drop the ball, let me know. If 
your family, your neighbor, or your local store is contributing to crime or dangerous conditions, speak up and let them 
know. If you see something in this city that needs to be addressed by Chief West, the mayor, the city manager, or any 
department head, speak up and let them know. Hold them accountable. It's a problem when crime becomes 
normalized in certain areas and we feel powerless to change it. No part of this city is better than another and no person 
is more valuable than anyone else. All of our lives matter whether we live in the South side of Goldsboro, Pill Hill or 
on Berkeley Boulevard. Crime is crime and the only way to reduce it is by being accountable and holding others 
accountable until we see change, even then, we cannot afford to become complacent. Get out of the mindset that 
reporting wrongdoing is snitching. Too many lives have been lost and too many murder cases remain unsolved. This 
is not okay, let's commit to accountability to each other and to our community.  

Councilman Boyette shared the following: I would like I'd echo everything that I've heard. I completely agree and 
support every council member and their comments thus far, completely. As I've said many times this community 
deserves to feel safe in their home and on their streets no matter what and not one particular side of town, every 
corner of the city. The citizens deserve to be safe and feel safe and be safe in their community whatever it takes. One 
of the things that it's going to take, as you've heard this evening, is proactive law enforcement. Proactive law 
enforcement is necessary to start moving the needle and in order for proactive law enforcement to be successful, we 
have to have the support of the community. The community has to support the efforts of the law enforcement and I'd 
echo further the comments that were made in support of our police chief. You have my support, your officers have my 
support and any resources that you feel that you need to help move this needle, I'm in support of and again I agree 
with everything I've heard from each of my fellow council mates, and I appreciate everyone's comments. 

Councilwoman Jones thanked everyone for being here and shared the following: I may be a little redundant but 
I'm going to say how I feel. I'm in District 1 and no, we have not had a lot of incidents like that, but it filtrates into my 
district. We cannot turn a blind eye to the fact that crime perpetuates a vicious cycle of leading and making broken 
families and shattered dreams and loss of opportunities. The effects of crime reverberate through generations, leaving 
scars for many decades on children. Every time someone dies, every time someone in that family dies, a child hurts, 
that family hurts, friends hurt. I have had a friend open a door and be shot so many times until they could not even 
transfer a body to the car, that's devastating and so are the lives of all these individuals that have passed. Children 
growing up in an environment that is plagued by violence and crime are most likely to repeat those patterns. They are, 
it's true, that’s history. We have the power right in here, all of us in here and everybody that's listening. We have the 
power to change that, and we have to make a positive change for more prosperous communities. We must come 
together as a society, as neighbors, as a fellow human being, to tackle the root and cause of crime addressed by 
systemic inequalities. Education, economic empowerment, access to quality healthcare, and a strong sense of 
community, that is the pillar. I echo what my council people have said. By investing in our youth, having mentorship 
and supporting them. If you see a child, just speak to them. Just say hello. Tell them that they're beautiful. Sometimes 
that is the only time that child will ever hear that they're beautiful. We have to invest in our community, we have to 
invest in our children. Our adults must be adults. I'm telling you parents; you can't be sister friend. You’ve got to be a 
parent. You’ve got to be a parent first and you’ve got to teach them and lead them and be a role model for them and 
be someone that they will be able to look up to. I am challenging all the churches and I've done it on my Facebook 
page. I'm challenging all the churches to come together and pray. I'm going to tell you last summer we had deaths. We 
walked, we sang, we prayed, we had a hearse visual to shock everyone, but two weeks later where were we. We were 
back in our homes, some of us, doing nothing. How many people have called the lady whose young daughter was 
killed at the pool? How many of you after you did that walk, after you did your TV shot, where were you? After then 
did you call her? Did you go by, did you check on her? We need your help. We need the community. I created a crime 
watch in my district. I have about 15 or 25 people come. But do you know what the other ones say? They say, Ms. 
Hiawatha, I will tell you, I will call you, but I will not go to your meetings because I don't want anyone seeing me go 
in that meeting for that crime watch. We’ve got to do better. It is time for us to stand together. We must work together 
hand in hand to build a future where every child has an opportunity to learn, where every child feels safe, where every 
adult feels safe, and we've got to do it and we've got to do it now and I thank each and every one of you for being here 
tonight. It warms my heart to see you here and thank you.  

Mayor Gaylor thanked Council for their time this evening and shared the following comments: To our other 
representatives, other elected officials from other communities; mayor, thank you so much for being here showing 
your support; commissioner, sheriff, other council members from other communities, I saw our register of deeds, I 



on

0 • -

0

COti
ono
0

3° 

F- °' 

b

o .

0

a

o

x

m

bb

t8

0

Q' 

3 °' 

ani ° °' 

o °

q ° >' 

Q)

a 

U . 

0

a. 

a 

C

3

3

b

bb

A

00
A

U

CA

Q) 

cll

rnc1U. 
0

U

O

Q

0 ° 

03

p

M

O .

d

0

U

3

c

0

cn

o

U «, 

p ° ° 

o

b

pUq

U

v' 

Q. 

Off. 
j

O

y

O

U ° `

n • 

Nb
p

p

U •.. 

rn

N

U > 

b4 •.. 

cGOD

03

CA

0

o

40 U- 

cdO
O

3

w ° 

O

O

N

c

U ° 

f°.

o

N

U4. 
O

r. . 

U

c, 

O 

M

N

O

O

O

0 >

U

p

0

3

0

3> 

U

onoEl ;

c

cz

E0MAR

TOLnvwcaa











RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 7 7

RESOLUTION IN MEMORY OF MAYOR ALFONZO " AL" KING

WHEREAS, the passing of Mayor Alfonzo " Al" King on July 2, 2024 is a significant loss to
his family, friends and residents of the City he loved so much. He will always be remembered as a
transformative leader that left the city in better hands and his passing leaves a void that will be
difficult to fill; and

WHEREAS, the love that Mayor King had for his wife Juanita, son Stanley, daughter Alison, 
and son Kevin was unsurpassed and will last forever in the hearts of his children and for generations

to follow; and

WHEREAS, Al King served as Director of Personnel and Safety for the City of Goldsboro
from February 1979 until his retirement in April 2000; and

WHEREAS, in January 2002, Mayor King was appointed by the Goldsboro City Council to
serve as Mayor for the remainder of the term of Hal Plonk who passed away in December 2001. In

November 2003, Mayor Alfonzo King was elected to his first full four- year term as Mayor of the

City of Goldsboro. He won a second term in November 2007 and in July 2012 was elected for a
third term; and

WHEREAS, at the meeting on February 4, 2002 when the oath of office was administered, he
stated, " whenever a vote is cast or a decision is made, it will be based on what is best for the entire

City of Goldsboro." This statement made by Mayor King exemplifies his character and integrity; and

WHEREAS, Mayor King served as the President and Vice -President of the North Carolina
League of Municipalities, Chairman of the North Carolina League of Municipalities ( NCLM) Risk

Management Services Board of Trustees, Chairman of the North Carolina Governor' s Military
Affairs Commission, and member of the North Carolina Metropolitan Mayors Coalition; and

WHEREAS, Mayor King also served on the Wayne Community College Board of Trustees, the

Wayne County Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors, the Downtown Goldsboro Development
Corporation Board of Directors, United Way of Wayne County Board of Directors, the Child
Nutrition and Outreach Program Committee and several other Special Project Committees; and

WHEREAS, as a testament to his dedication and lifelong work, Mayor King was awarded the

Downtown Goldsboro Development Corp. Lifetime Achievement Award in 2010, Order of the

Long Leaf Pine by Governor Bev Perdue in 2011 and the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce' s
Cornerstone Award in 2017; and

WHEREAS, Mayor King originated the phrase that Seymour Johnson was " the best air force
base on planet earth" and he loved Seymour Johnson and the airmen; and



WHEREAS, Mayor King' s outgoing personality, sense of humor, and spirit of true dedication

to public service made him a beloved and respected figure through the city and state; and

WHEREAS, July 2, 2024, will officially be recognized as Mayor Al King Day in Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, in honor of his life, legacy and the positive impact he made on the City of Goldsboro
and the State of North Carolina. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. We express to the family of Mayor Al King our heartfelt belief that the memory of his good
works and character will be and remain an inspiration to many and a blessing to all. 

2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this

15th

day of July, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Holly Jones
Deputy City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, I

Mayor



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 7$ 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY

JOHN ALBERT

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 13 YEARS

WHEREAS, John Albert retired on July 1, 2024 as a Parks Superintendent, with more than
13 years of service with the Parks and Recreation Department; and

WHEREAS, John began his career on August 18, 2010 as a Parks Superintendent with the

Parks and Recreation Department where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, John has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has

gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; 
and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf
of themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to John
Albert their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the
years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that we express to John Albert our very best wishes for success, 
happiness, prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall
be in full force and effect from and after this

15th

day of July, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Holly Jones
Deputy City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, 

Al
Mayor





JUNIOR SCIENTIST 
ACADEMY

Burroughs Wellcome Fund SSEP Grant Awardee

Item E



History & Purpose

Burroughs Wellcome Fund awarded Kinetic Minds, Inc. the SSEP grant in 2021 to provide a S.T.E.M. 
program to underserved populations in Wayne County. Students selected for this program had to 

demonstrate a high aptitude in math and/or science as part of the criteria. Rising 5th – 9th graders 
were provided a 3-week summer camp focused on the core areas of; life science, engineering, and 
coding. In addition, the students were required to attend 7 Saturday sessions over the course of the 
year which would conclude with a showcase. Participation in the JSA program included field trips; 
the first year was to the National Zoo as well as the National Air and Space Museum in Washington, 
DC. In year two, JSA participants visited the Kennedy Space Center on Merritt Island, Florida. The 

SSEP grant covered all costs for JSA participants and those that successfully completed the program 
received a stipend.   



What did Junior Scientist Academy 
participants learn?

    
   

• Through hands-on projects and 
activities, JSA participants gained 
valuable S.T.E.M. skills in life 
science, engineering, and coding. 
Participants learned key 
application, analysis, and 
evaluation skills vital for critical 
thinking. Each learned problem-
solving skills, persevering through 
challenges that will help them 
meet & exceed their educational 
goals as they prepare for their 
future.

[Add a graphic that provides 
evidence of what you learned]





Hard at work



Junior Scientist Academy moments





Importance 

• The Junior Scientist 
Academy gave 
students from 
underserved 
communities an 
opportunity to 
explore, learn, 
engage, and develop 
their S.T.E.M. skills 
as they consider a 
potential future in 
S.T.E.M.

Relevance

• These Junior 
Scientist Academy 
participants will 
exhibit improved 
educational 
outcomes from 
their involvement 
in Kinetic Minds, 
Inc.’s S.T.E.M. 
program.

Significance

• The continued 
growth and 
development of 
students in Wayne 
County interested in 
S.T.E.M. fields will 
only occur through 
programs that give 
students access, 
without obstacles, 
to a variety of areas 
in S.T.E.M.



SHAPING THE FUTURE
CSS of Wayne County

“The Mission of Communities 

Supporting Schools of Wayne County 

is to provide opportunities for 

students to stay in school, graduate, 

and be successful in life.

Item G



The Importance of Mentoring in Schools- An Investment in the Future

• It pairs young people with adults that serve as positive role models
• It builds confidence, relationships, resilience, and character
• It helps students achieve and engage
• Mentoring programs in schools have shown to be a cost-efficient way 

of increasing positive relationships students have in their lives , while 
also having the potential to boost factors that can lead to educational 
success



CSS Mentoring Programs 
• Carver Heights Elementary- 97 volunteers served 150 students this 

past year through the reading buddy/lunch buddy program
• Mentors were trained  by CSS staff
• Background Checks completed by WCPS
• 2 CSS staff members managed the program at CHE
• Total of 1,395 hours volunteered at CHE
• Volunteer Value of one adult volunteer is estimated at $29.86 for  an 

hour by the 2022 Independent Sector Report on Value of Volunteers
• Total value at CHE = $41,654.70 for 2023-2024



4

The Dropout Crisis

 1/3 of American high school students do not 
graduate on time
 ½ of Hispanic, African American, and 

American Indian students do not graduate 
on time
 Everyday 7,000 students drop out of high 

school & 1.2 million students drop out of 
high school each year
 Individuals and society suffer: difficult to 

find employment, more likely to seek 
government support, and have more health 
issues
 75% of prison inmates are high school 

dropouts



The Need for Mentors
• Mentors are asked to commit to working with one child for thirty minutes 

per week after background checks are approved and training has been 
completed. (Some work with several individual students on the same day.)

• All materials are provided for the mentors
• The CSS staff coordinates times and advises of any conflicts, calendar 

changes, testing schedules, etc.
• The program begins by the end of September.
• Recruiting volunteers has already begun for next year through businesses, 

churches, civic clubs.
• CSS is building the mentoring programs back at Dillard and Goldsboro 

High.  We have had more challenges since COVID at middle and high 
school levels than at the elementary level. For the past few years we have 
worked more with individual case management and small groups at these 
schools to focus on academics and attendance.

• Adding North Drive Elementary is a major goal.  This would allow CSS to 
have a presence in every school in the central attendance feeder pattern.



The Importance of MALE Mentors





“In order to help at-risk students, the schools need someone to connect the dots.  
They need an individual who will free the school staff to concentrate on the teaching 
while someone else coordinates outside resources…to support students’ academic 
and social service needs “ 



Carver Heights Elementary
Began in January 2019- Focusing on Elementary Reading



Dillard Middle School
CSS Program Since 2018

Focus – Academics, Small Groups, Career Goals



Goldsboro High School Programs 
CSS Program Began in 2008

Focusing on Graduation,  Academics, Career Goals



GHS Success Story



CSS Supported Schools in the City of Goldsboro

• Carver Heights Elementary (currently two part-time positions)
• Dillard Middle School (currently one part-time position)
•             (Add one more part-time)
• Goldsboro High School  (currently one part-time position)
•              (Add one more part-time)

• North Drive - ???? The feeder pattern would be complete.
•        (Begin work with elementary reading/ reading buddy program)



Waynecss.org

PROGRAMS don’t change People-RELATIONSHIPS  do!

Click on the SUBSCRIBE tab on our website to receive our free e-Newsletter.



End of Year ReportEnd of Year Report
2023-20242023-2024

Communities Supporting SchoolsCommunities Supporting Schools
  of Wayne Countyof Wayne County



Who We AreWho We Are
The mission of Communities Supporting Schools of Wayne County is to provide
opportunities for students to stay in school, graduate and be successful in life.

★ CSS  Staff 

★ CSS Board of Directors

★ Wayne County Public Schools

★ Law Enforcement

★ Private Business

★United Way

CSS Recieves County Wide Support from...CSS Recieves County Wide Support from...

Success CoachesSuccess Coaches
Success Coaches serve at selected elementary, middle and high schools focusing on drop
out prevention. The Success Coaches will help to identify students in need of additional
support and at risk of dropping out.

The Coaches work closely with students to achieve academic success and stay on track to
graduate with their peers. Success Coaches use a variety of strategies, intervention
programs and resources to promote student success and ensure graduation. 

★ Civic Organizations 

★ Faith-based Organizations

★ Individual Donors

★ University of Mt. Olive

★ Wayne Community College

Restorative Justice ProgramRestorative Justice Program

The Restorative Justice Program emphasizes an alternative dispute resolution model
where the emphasis is not just on punishing youth offenders, but on giving victims a
voice, restoring trust with the community, and redirecting youth. 

Teen Court | Community Service | ArtXecute 



Milo (not a real alien)

CHES students and volunteers
celebrating Wacky Wednesday
one day during Read Across
America Week

After spending the last several
months reading to first grade
classes about nutrition and
health, Campbell University
medical students made their  
final visit to Brogden Primary.

Third and fourth grade students at
Carver Elementary participated in a
“Race to Space” reading challenge.
Students who completed their
challenge participated in a Space Jam
and got to take a photo with Milo. 

In the SchoolsIn the Schools

Success Coach Terri McKay
accompanied a group of Mt Olive

Middle School athletes to the
University of Mt Olive for National

Women and Girls in Sports Day. 



MOE’S TOWNMOE’S TOWN

Barbara Jones
Program Director

ArtXecuteWayne@gmail.com
(919) 735-1432



Volunteer AppreciationVolunteer Appreciation

CSS is thankful for Reading Success
Coaches Gale Lewis, Robin DeVeaux, and a
group of amazing volunteers at Carver
Heights Elementary School! Back in March,
we celebrated our volunteers at The
Firehouse. Many thanks to Amy Heyward for
organizing and donating for this great event.
We appreciate every volunteer- who comes
out every week- to spend time reading with
our students. What better way to give back
to this community and to "Pay it Forward!"

Communities Supporting Schools of Wayne
County is so proud to have three outstanding
reading volunteers recognized at the WCPS
Volunteer Appreciation Reception. Our
amazing volunteers are Phyllis Smith
(Brogden Primary), Charles Wright,Jr.
(Carver Heights), and Ann- Marie Majeskey
(Carver Elementary). These volunteers give
of their time every week to serve our
students. They have done such great work!
Congratulations!!

Have a Heart for Kids 2024Have a Heart for Kids 2024



waynecss.org

@waynecss
sbennett@waynecss.org

@cssofwayne
@cssofwayne

S T A Y  I N  T O U C H

Cristy Barnes-Williams, Board Chair  
Julie Beck, Board Vice-Chair
Tiffany Creech, Secretary
Beverly Wallace-Wiggins, Treasurer
 Jennifer Collins
Shannon Weeks
D’Leeshia Lee
Pam Stokes
Ken Derksen
Donna Best
Kim Copeland
Ryan Barbato
Renita Allen Dawson
Kriquette Davis
Justin Minshew

We thank you for your continued support in our efforts to
contribute to Communities Supporting Schools of Wayne County

B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S

Selena Bennett
Executive Director

Wendy Hooks 
Associate Director

Barbara Jones
Restorative Justice
Program Director

Aleisha Santos
Program Assistant

Dawn Amory
Data Management

Angie Rains
Success Coach

Anne Millington 
Success Coach

Gale Lewis
Success Coach

Greg Batts
Success Coach

Mary Kay James
Success Coach

Veda McNair
Success Coach

Nancy Lancaster 
Success Coach

Robin DeVeaux
Success Coach

Sharon Patterson
Success Coach

Terri McKay
Success Coach

A special thanks to Casey Mozingo at Big Blue Couch Media for producing our Success Coach video and
capturing these headshots. 



UNITED WAY OF 
WAYNE COUNTY
CITY OF GOLDSBORO
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION FUNDING

2023-2024

Item H



2023-2024 NOTICE OF
FUNDING

OPPORTUNITY
Provided by United Way of Wayne County

in support of the City of Goldsboro

GETTING STARTED



THE PROCESS

NPO Reviews Step ONE to 
verify all requirements can 

be met

NPO submits Step ONE 
with support documents

UWWC notifies NPO to 
proceed to Step TWO or 

STOP

Community Impact 
Commitee reviews and 

scores applications

PROGRAM 
EARNS HIGH 

SCORE

PROGRAM 
EARNS MIDDLE 

SCORE

PROGRAM 
EARNS LOW 

SCORE

Program aligns and 
achieves outcomes

COG Impact Committee 
makes recommendations 

UWWC provides
recommendations to 

Council

Program is recommended 
for funding

COG funds programs

NPO provides reporting

Program recommended 
provided funding availaility

Program is not 
recommended

Program does not passProgram is further 
evaluated

Timeline:

PRESENTATIONS: Specifics TBD  Weeks of June 19 and June 26, 2023

FUNDING DECISIONS:  July, 2023

STEP TWO: Application Submission  May 23 - June 7, 2023

STEP ONE: Prequalification Requirements  May 10-19, 2023



THE COMMUNITY INVESTED...



Contact: Suzie Acree/Lee Hulse

Contact: Ashley Horne

NOTICE OF FUNDING OPPORTUNITY

RESULTS & UPDATES

Contact: Sissy Lee-Elmore Contact: Pam Anderson / Alice 
Summerlin

WATCH HEALTHCARE PROGRAM
FOCUS: HEALTH & WELLNESS

GOALS MET:

• Provided healthcare to 986 COG residents from 
7/1/23 - 4/30/24

⚬ 605 residents served in Zip Code 27530
￭ 163 Diabetics, 126 with A1C <9 = 77%

￭ 284 Hypertensives, 172 with BP < 140/90 = 
61%

￭ 462 with BMIs out of healthy range, 462 

received education/ counseling at visits = 
100%

￭ 272 tobacco users, 272 received education/ 

counseling for cessation = 100%

⚬ 2 residents served in Zip Code 27532

￭ 1 Diabetic, 1 with A1C <9 = 100%
￭ 2 with BMIs out of healthy range, 2 received 

education/ counseling at visits = 100%

￭ 2 residents served in Zip Code 27533
￭ 2 Diabetic, 2 with A1C <9 = 100%
￭ 2 Hypertensives, 1 with BP < 140/90 = 50%

￭ 2 with BMIs out of healthy range, 2 received 
education/ counseling at visits = 100%

⚬ 377 residents served in Zip Code 27534
￭ 114 Diabetics, 87 with A1C <9 = 76%
￭ 174 Hypertensives, 121 with BP < 140/90 = 

70%
￭ 286 with BMIs out of healthy range, 286 

received education/ counseling at visits = 

100%
￭ 122 tobacco users, 122 received education/ 

counseling for cessation = 100%

WAYNE INITIATIVE FOR SCHOOL HEALTH 
(WISH)

FOCUS: HEALTH & WELLNESS

GOALS MET:

• Individuals have increased knowledge of the 
implications and prevention of disease and 
addiction.

• Youth have an increased ability to make informed 
choices about their health and personal relationships 
and avoid risky and abusive behavior.

• At risk students are provided with resources to 
support health and wellness.

• Families have increased skills and resources that will 
help them develop into a safe and effective family 
unit.

• Goldsboro High School/Wayne School of 
Engineering
⚬ 67 comprehensive physical exams
⚬ 65 health risk assessments
⚬ 95 mental health counseling sessions
⚬ 47 nutritional counseling sessions
⚬ 652 students enrolled at GHS/WSE WISH

• Eastern Wayne High School
⚬ 109 comprehensive physical exams
⚬ 135 health risk assessments
⚬ 478 mental health counseling sessions
⚬ 139 nutritional counseling sessions
⚬ 363 students enrolled at EWHS WISH

• Dillard Middle School
⚬ 109 comprehensive physical exams
⚬ 135 health risk assessments
⚬ 478 mental health counseling sessions
⚬ 139 nutritional counseling sessions
⚬ 257 students enrolled at DMS WISH

• Wayne Middle High Academy
⚬ 10 comprehensive physical exams
⚬ 36 health risk assessments
⚬ 7 mental health counseling sessions
⚬ 7 nutritional counseling sessions
⚬ 143 students enrolled at WMHA WISH

LITERACY CONNECTIONS
FOCUS: FINANCIAL STABILITY

GOALS MET:

• 137 program participants successfully completed 
the financial literacy program.

• 75 demonstrated understanding of the financial 
skills presented

4DAY MOVEMENT, INC
FOCUS: BASIC NEEDS

GOALS MET:

• Out of 107 sheltered clients, 63 families and/or 
individuals with basic needs of temporary shelter 
were able to transition into permanent supportive 
housing

• Out of 43 clients who are eligible to work, 24 families 
and/or individuals who now have permanent housing 
have a consistent and stable income through 
employment.

WAGES

Contact: Kristin Alexander

FOCUS: BASIC NEEDS

GOALS MET:

• Increase of 1,605 meals provided to the senior 
citizens in Goldsboro city limits

• Volunteers living and working throughout Wayne 
County delivered 1,605 meals to senior citizens within 
Goldsboro city limits.

• 7 Clients within Goldsboro city limits will receive 
meals throughout the months of September 2023 - 
June 2024.

Provided by United Way of Wayne County 
in support of the City of Goldsboro

2023-2024



Contact: Maggie Lattin

Contact: Selena Bennett

Contact: Anna Hinson

FOCUS: EDUCATION

GOALS MET:

• Increased
⚬  Youth participation in:

￭ The music program from 10 to 22
￭ The gallery from 11 to 101

⚬ Community teen participation from 0 to 52 in the 
Teen Arts Program including Teen Art Club, 
Apprenticeship, Public Art, & College Mentorship.

⚬ Studio Artists from 6 to 10. 
⚬ Musicians from 1 to 5. 
⚬ Creative small business assistance from 113 to 

206.

• With recent staff changing, the adult programming did 
not reach its goal. However, in partnership with Wayne 
County Public Library's Creative Aging Program, 
support was provided their adult programs with 
leadership, guidance, and holding classes at the Arts 
Council.
⚬ 75 adults 65+ were reached within the 8 week 

program

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF
WAYNE COUNTY
FOCUS: EDUCATION

GOALS MET:

• 150 different members enrolled in summer 
camp with the average daily enrollment of 77

• Each morning from 8 AM - 11 AM, certified 
teachers worked with members in math and 
reading. Improvements were seen during the 9 
weeks, especially in those who attended daily

• During the summer, behavior issues improve 
dramatically as the members got into the 
routine and learned the mission and rules of the 
program. They recited these daily.

ARTS COUNCIL OF WAYNE COUNTY

COMMUNITIES SUPPORTING SCHOOLS
FOCUS: EDUCATION

GOALS MET:
• 97 volunteers served a total of 1,395 hours throughout 

the year.
 

• Lunch and Reading Buddies Program offered weekly 
reading activities.
⚬ All materials are furnished by CSS of Wayne

• Two staff members served 150 students at Carver 
Heights Elementary

WAYNE COUNTY MUSEUM

Contact: Jennifer Kuykendall

FOCUS: EDUCATION

GOALS MET:

• Offered 5 free diverse educational event programs, 
serving 275 children and families with Arts & 
STEM based activities.

• 150 free children's books were given to children 
attending educational programs

• Educational tours were expanded to include the 
blind, deaf, and persons with physical and/or 
mental disabilities.

• New History in Theater series had 485 total 
attendees between four plays

• 2024
⚬ 100 children and families have participated in 

free education event programs YTD
⚬ On track to give away 250 free children’s 

books to promote literacy at home
⚬ Created monthly Senior Center Program for 

senior education & enrichment
⚬ Implementing free resource material/artifact 

backpacks for homeschool parents
⚬ Partnering with the City for extensive research 

on steering committees for the new Arts 
District, James Street Memorial Park and new 
African-American Arts & Heritage Museum

R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
 &

 
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 2

0
2

3
-

2
0

2
4

 B
U

D
G

E
T

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 

P
E

R
C

E
N

T
A

G
E

Total Allocations
(Includes UWWC Fees)

F U N D I N G
ALLOCATIONS
BY NON-PROFIT
ORGANIZATION

$100,000

WATCH
Wayne Action Teams
for Community Health

$15,000 16.7%

WISH
Wayne Initiative for
School Health

$11,500 12.8%

Wayne County Museum
Wayne County Historical
Association

$5,000 5.6%

Arts Council
of Wayne County

$6,000 6.7%

Literacy
Connections
of Wayne County

$10,000 11%

Communities 
Supporting Schools
of Wayne County

$13,500 15%

Boys & Girls Clubs
of Wayne County

$9,000 10%

WAGES
Home Delivered Meals

$11,000 12.2%

4Day Movement, Inc. $9,000 10%

ABOUT THE PARTNERSHIP
CITY OF GOLDSBORO &

UNITED WAY OF WAYNE COUNTY

EDUCATION
Every child in the City of Goldsboro develops 

and succeeds socially, academically and 
emotionally

FINANCIAL STABILITY
Ensuring that all residents achieve and 

maintain financial stability

BASIC NEEDS
Ensure all residents basic needs are met with 

dignity

HEALTH & WELLNESS
Everyone in City of Goldsboro has the 

knowledge, resources and opportunities to live 
a healthy lifestyle

This brochure outlines the City of Goldsboro 
Impact Grant funding allocations for the 2023-
2024 year. To understand how the funds were 
distributed, read about our partnership.
In a commitment to fiscal responsibility, 
United Way of Wayne County served as a 
third-party administrator by vetting the non-
profits serving our community. This ensured 
that the City of Goldsboro’s resources were 
allocated effectively and supported the most 
impactful organizations.

While the City of Goldsboro supports multiple 
efforts impacting our community their top 
four priorities fall under these four areas:

United in support of our community

In addition to the four focus areas listed above, the City of 
Goldsboro also supports Animal Welfare and Tourism, 

Recreation, and Arts & Culture



Item I



J











G : ;~: LDSB· R ~, 
SE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR 

Development Name '°' 0 S E: VJ 0 i .. 1 

Proposed Use L A vV ~ fY\ 0 (Al f l j A t.IE. t 

Project location or address \ 8\ iJ IJ tJ . S. 

City of Goldsboro 
Planning Department 

2000 North Center Street 

Goldsboro, NC 27530 

Property Identification Number(s) and Tax ID Number (s) for each parcel to which these guidelines will apply: 

PIN# 

Project type? 0 Single Family 0 Townhouse 

Name l"Y'I ...,., 
/I I ON f 1 Loc..f/A 1 1 ~/ 

Address 5 I I /\fc )-lvJY 5 3 
Phone 

Company Name 

Address 

Address J o 

Existing Zoning District 

If more than one district, provide the acreage of each: 

Overlay District? OYes IDN'o 

0 Multi-Family D Non-Residential 0 PUD/Mixed Use 

Inside City limits? DYes 



Existing Impervious Surface acres/sf 

Proposed Impervious Surface acres/sf Neuse River Buffer DYes rt& 0 

Watershed Protection Area Wetlands DYes m o 

FEMA Map Panel Base Flood Elevation 

Total # of townhouse lots creage in active open space 

Total# of all lots Acreage in passive open space 

Linear feet of new roadways Linear feet of new sewer mains 

Linear feet of new water mains linear feet of new sidewalks 

Proposed sewer allocation Linear feet in new trails 

In filing this plan as the property owner(s), I/we do hereby agree and firmly bind ourselves, my/our heirs, executors, administrators, successors 

and assigns jointly and severally to construct all improvements and make all dedications as shown on this proposed plan as approved by the 

City. 

O · \,.(0 1ZIJ.:..6 f:.. i; I I• ' I hereby designate P ' '- to serve as my agent regarding this application, to receive and 

respond to administrative comments, to resubmit plans on my behalf, and to represent me in any public meeting regarding this application. 

I/we have read, acknowledge, and affirm that this project conforms to all appllcation requirements applicable with the proposed 

development use. 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

Conditional Zoning (4 paper copies & digital copies of all required plans and applications) $550 

Page 2 of 7 



i' I ' f , " , ! / 

I hereby give CONSENT to ,.... (type, stamp or print clearly full name of agent) to act on my 
behalf, to submit or have submitted this application and all required material and documents, and to attend and represent me at all meetings 
and public hearings pertaining to the application(s) indicated above. Furthermore, I hereby give consent to the party designated above to 
agree to all terms and conditions which may arise as part of the approval of this application . 

I hereby certify I have full knowledge of the property I have an ownership interest in the subject of this application. I understand that any 
fa lse, inaccurate, or incomplete information provided by me, or my agent, will result In the denia l, revocation or administrative withdrawal 
of this application, request, approval or permit. I acknowledge that additional information may be required to process th is application. I 
further consent to the City of Goldsboro to publ ish, copy or reproduce any copyrighted document submitted as a part of this application for 
any third party. I further agree to all terms and conditions which may be imposed as part of the approval of thlhplication. 

SlgnatureofOwn" l J0-~ ff~<dNam<a/Own« (ff,,, tJ.a/Vltf ~,!Ji--

, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, do hereby certify that 
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the 

rv~ 
Witness my hand and notarial seal this the __ cl::....._ ___ day of 

(Seal) 

Page 3 of 7 

(Printed N~ ?t;: 
C J{Y>k u# 

(Signature) 

County of Commission: fA !0J h l (,c, rrW 
Commission Expires: f\~~ )_~ 1 )._G 2~ 













 

 
 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
Mark E. Helmer, AICP, CFM,  

Planning Director 

 

 

 
Notice Of Public Hearings 

 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Goldsboro will conduct public 
hearings during the course of their open meeting which starts at 7:00 P.M. on Monday, June 
17, 2024, in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 214 North Center Street to consider 
the following requests. 
 

SU-12-24 Ahmed Aljabali: The applicant is requesting a special use permit to 
allow for a retail sales establishment on property located within an Airport 
Business (AB) zoning district. The property considered for approval is located on 
the west side of US 70 East Highway approximately 2,200 feet north of its 
intersection with South NC 111 Highway. The property is further identified as 
NCPIN# 3528140541. 
 
SU-13-24 Steve Moore: The applicant is requesting a special use permit to allow 
for a contractor office with outdoor storage on property located within a General 
Business (GB) zoning district. The property considered for approval is located on 
the east side of North William Street approximately 150 feet north of its 
intersection with East Holly Street. The property is further identified as NCPIN# 
3509180457. 
 
Z-4-24 Rosewood Outdoor Power Equipment and Supply: The applicant is 
requesting to rezone from the Residential Zoning District (R-16) to the General 
Business – Conditional Zoning District (GB-CZD) approximately 11.36 acres of 
land located on the southeast side of the intersection of Carolina Circle and West 
US 70 Hwy. The property is further identified as NCPIN# 2680831822. 
 
 

All interested persons are encouraged to attend. To accommodate disabilities and to comply 
with ADA regulations, please contact City Hall if further assistance is needed. All inquiries 
regarding this matter may be directed to the City of Goldsboro Planning Department at (919) 
580-4313 or online at www.goldsboronc.gov.  

 
 
Publish Friday, June 7, 2024 
Publish Friday, June 14, 2024 



IItN0N

ct

U —

03

3

o

b

a

a) 

do

ti)

o _ 

o

a 

c

x

N

a3

u

a3

CAyun
cd

oon :  

o

o

7:

1C13Cd
y

o

C7

cnto

U

O

O

U ^

C

c

cn

In

cnxu
ct

N

bLncntocd
Q¢ 

LnCn
4- 

O

bOA

ao7:
3

to

i

a

NGn

C

r, - 

b4

to

o

N

C) 

o

o

rs _

N >~ 

y

o

N

N

N 

Q

aA '

cn  

Uo 

o

U ° 

rl

o

U

oIn
4c) 

cd

o

C,

3

N

4

O -. 

w • 

9

s.. 

cd   

O   '

d    `

i' 

U •  

U

Q

cd

O

N

U

O

Cl, 

y

O

O

ON

C 

O

OCZS °° 
O

U

N

N

U

4 . 

vUi

cd

y

cid

O

Q. 

cd

o

O

o ; 

a 

o

o

o. 

cn

N

bA

O

U

O

Q

U

s0• 

C

O

C'

C ~' 

U ' 

C40

Q, 

j

N

p, 

p, 

U

s.. 

N

N

U

00

UZI

y

Q

y '

j

b

y
4. 

C

U

to

A

Q) 

rA

00

a° 

a4

a °

O

Ux

o71
ct

x

3

00 

3• 

3 

3 

3 

3b
3 

3.

Ct

3 

Sob

o

Oz

N

r

a) U

IB

a

Cd

Q

W

v

oy

a 

N

u

A

A

O

c

z

as

40) 

A

a. 

o

W

G

O

S

o

aai

O

O

M

c ' 

CC

b
C

C

4-
1

N

r

a) 

U

IB



K















o

o

O

y0

p

bA

bA - 

a) 

cl

U

Lt

o.. .. 

a,

o 

3

0cd _ 
r '

o 

o

oU ° 

o 

b

cd

O  

o 

a 

N 

o

o''- , 

a;•.. 

U

O

O

O "" 

O ^ 

s.. 

O

O

W) 

O

V7

O

00
Q) 

3

a) 

a) 

cd

d

p

min •.. 
p

3

Cd

o . 

cd

o , 

a

0 ° . -° 

a
p

o  . 

3   

a 

O

O ° 

O , 

4-

i ,, ° 

4= 

C

Q, 

b ^

C °' 

O °

oo "" ¢ 

to

14  

U

o

b0

o

o  

0

a 

4.

w+

tn

0

CVM`+ 

cd

CLOo
o- 

W

a

ON
vUi + ^ 

Q ¢ + 

b

k "^ 

y . 

O

O

O +, 

1p

a) 

O .

0

bq
O

O

U

b

O

O

3

b

O ^

d '

b

ch

O

4

N . '

C . 

O

cF; 

i-: 

NO "" 

C

U

a) 

U

a

O

a) 

O

U

O , 

cn

to

D

a. 

o , 

C7

0

00

C• 

Cl

O

3

a) 

U

p

M

y

a) 

o

s
c}? .

Cd

ad :
h

ami .(> 

o = 

cd

o

o

Z

cam, 

N

b 

Q) 

r- 

M

O°, ° 

0

0 `+" 

Cd

apip
0p" 

cd

U  -- ' ° 

aoi

U ' 

r

I

as

r' ` . ° 

Q  

o

u

aoi

b

U ' „ 

0

0

0

M 

o

o° 

cd

cd , 

cs

p. 

a 

00 

p

O + 

cd

W

O + 

U

cd = 

cd . ^"" ^ + 

cd

s4

U +-' 

ri%+ " 

O ". 

n ' 

C/) 

a) 

cd

a) 

M

f 

00

0

r

O . 

a
p 

x

cd

o
a 

o

U ; °

JSR' 

3

4. " 

Q

p., , ° 

o, 

M

w

o

o  

C! 

d

U-

0 >, . ., 

U
4. 

h
A .. 

cd

ti

r-+ 

0

O

Q

cd

W `+. 

U

w

G

b .

m

Co

o . 

W

y

a) •  

a)

C40

O -+ '

b

cd

4r

y , '„ 

Z

p .. 

O

y

V] 

y. 

M

cd

a) 

M

r. _ 

4 

V

0 -• . = 

o

ma . 

O

O

C

o

4- 

t. 

U `" 

O

o

u, 

b

o

v `'' 

C'

3

O

o

U

0

o

U

M

o° ° 

a

c

r. 

to  

r

cd

U - 

00

cn

M

a3i

W
4. 

cd

7

xi

0

0 '

b

cd

U

O° 

Z

i .., 

O

o

3

0o

p _ 

0

0

O° 

t

h

F ", 

4] ." 

Q) 

Q) ` 

U

O

cn

V

Oq

4-+ 

cid

c

n .._ , 

M
a) 

MCO

x" 

M

N

3 ' - }+ 

o 

O 

U

o

o

o

bn—.

cam
a 

zt

N

F

O

bA , 
I , 

b ' ,= 

bA

Cn = .. 

O

N

O

bU
a) 

cd

o ¢' 

i . ° .  

s ' 

v

o . 

o

O

cd  

o ``' ` ` 

t.  

p

z

II

U

N

o

o

c • 

4a 

N

W

N

z

z

y

o

o° 

U -' 

U 

i -' 

U

o '-" ^

o

W

E, 

o

W '

n

o_ 

ti

O

V . 

3

Q

b

cd

N

rn

O

y

O

a) '

Li

O

U• 

w
O 

op

y

0

O

cd

N

o

O

O

cam, 

N

M

o

O

z

O

3

0

U

N

O

cn. 

a '

d

O .

fl  ~ 

O

p ' 

M

M + 

Ntn
cd

WOza ((

i

WdWVQaW•','•Ci 

0FxFOFpAqi' 

QUO'°a.pp.)"'+° :

O 

c0, 

cOaO ) 

a°

NCsod
o

4°° 

OWWQQ °

UUo 

o .

Qob34

UbcdA .+
oir

c+

pp3

W+ 0

0
p

Zy

no

vo¢OO

Nz

oMvb

c+

4" 

0

p

U 

4.. 

o — 

m — 

C-, 

0?

UNo

ZB
O '

b

cd

cd

cdN

0Z
O

O

My

a

4-
4

Z4.
O 

a) . 

O

Oo '
0

O > 

ch

d

Lnw. p  

C

O

oov'+ 

o

N

4- 

rdv
cc

A

ov° 

o

c

oz
o° °

t  

i

7

x ° 

cq

to

U

0

v¢ ' 

o _

O4•: 

iO" " 

U

U

O

Q. 

cd

a) 

o

M ° 

O

U

0
y

O

Ob

cl

4° 

yy

00
Ov

o0O"
TO

O

N

Zz
Q" 

0 - 

zV°

r_ 

W

aC4
cq

Q

O

X

4V)
U

i

O

O

too

O

0O

N

Cd

al ,

O

V

U

n

bA

to

O

v 

O

oo

O

Qcd , 
b

QC°
cl

U

o

m= ° 

z 

a'

U

Cdrc'
ti

00

4..

o 

a 

cn

o )

1.. 

y

cd , 

Z

y

z

cp

cd

o

a

w
a, 

3

N

M

cd

M

3' 

a' 

m

o° °° 

k

U
4 

O

O

Q

bA - 

Q

vi ° 

rn
o

0

O . ° °? 

v 

4- 

s. 

W

O

O

a

W

kn

3

ani

o

ai

0A  

o

fl

m

o ° ° 

o .

o

cd

O

o ° 

4 , 

O

cd

tom, 

o

v, 

d° 

b

d

a 

d

0

d

0

d

x

o

p

o

cd

o

0

0

0

bn

y

V

O  

W

U ° 

W

d

o

a 

o

W

U ' 

W  

cd  ' 

x  

b  

0

o

cd  

o  .  

4 

u. 
4 .  

Cd

W

o

o

o . 

F  

r

o

o

o

o. 

00- 

z

a

0b ? 

a

a

000to
c3  °

U

0

r

U

A. 

O4 ' 
xi4. 

O

xi

C

xr. 

y

x 

v

x

O

O

O - .. 

N
M

4 

O '.. '

d

4] 

bA

bA
O

Q

cd

N

3

0 

3

0

3. 

3

3

o

a, 

z 

o

w 

o,

c'

s,

n

a 

c, 

c, 

o 

N

a) "

j + 

U «

i

bq ' ' 

0

1

bA

l , 

o

O ? - 

4

p

bA

GQ

Gq ' `

n +- 

N

U

O

oo

O

O ^

L" 

O

O

a) " 

a) " 

Si

O

it

4] ' 

II

V7

Opp
a) 

bA

a) , 

N

U
a) 

v " 

v)

UNC7
3

crm

C1

rn

wQ .— 

U

cn

O

H `.

Z.

rn

3' 

MGQ
F 

W

Z

fl

0

a 

04 

in. 

viOIT -
40100r` O00Urn00OU



ci

Q

y

N

O

Ct

Cd

m

a 

V) 

MOO

Q) 

Urr

tai

Yui

411

U

W

LC.) 

U '

Cd

U

O

is

Cl

4. 

r+ 

s- 

Cd

N

cd

4-

4O

M

0

Uy

N

F" 

M

Mm

0
rrc Al

ft3Ei

M

Wl



L



































































































































































































































































aC7
Z

U

03 .°. 

0.

0F

x

W

a

a: ° 

to

C703

d

CW,7 -

cj

as

U

ani

cn

W  "

O

o3

O

N

M

wWoF" 
Q

a

W

A

d0
Z

O

0.

0

uu  

E

00

o

o

a 

C) 

W

v'• 

W

a ' 

do °  

a `

o ° 

o  

o , 

a  

w •.. 

ct

03

W

Wx 

C'
7"'.'" ' ••.. 

o

0

Uo

z $

5. 

cA

03

0

0-

0 

J

x

u
oz

a

At

idl

r

r, 

vl- 

N



P-

0

fs6 

L6

CO

I

W. .

1

c

co

C6

P-

0

fs6 

L6

CO

I

W. .
1



r 

f -

01

N

M .' 



N

m -

0



C14

M

fl- 

00



N

M

c



3

Mp 

3





Cd

N

CSC

c 

bo

Cd

0

O 

O

O

Cdr

p

cd 'cd -, 

Cd

O

b
e "

C . 

En

U

U

amcl,
iLO

a, 

o . 

x

b ' 

4. 

3

O

Z •

b

C) 

O

bA "-

C

s.. 

U

cd

64

cq

oCd

CA

o

Sb

oN
3

r, 

vdi

Opcd
CA

7:) 

Cd

c '

O

Cp " •.. 

s, +> 

sU.+ • 

U " 

U

Cd

u. 
1:

3

4p - "

o

cd

o

N

Q, 

Cd

U) 

Gn

o

p ° , 

b ' 

ani

A

Z

O . -

d

a ° ,(

I')

o

o - 

cd

o

o

4° 

cd

C

3

Cd

cd

15. 

V1

U +- 

rh

m

cd

cd

4r

0

U

i. +- 

s, 

U

O '

b. 

cd + 

O >, 

ti

S" 

O

N

U

3

Q- 

S". 

O

U

Z

0. 

Cd

cd

O +, 

N

cd

p >, 

y`

i' 

p

O "

d

U

Q +' 

O '

b  ." 

Cn

O

U

d' 

j

U

Cl

cd • 

O

b
r- + 

VU

boA > 

Q

C

U +

10

rj

N

30- 

Q

h

i". ¢+ 

i 

V 

U '

3

G 

Cd .

f. •"" . > 

Cd

W

Go

b

A

o"

d

b 

b ; 

A 

o

i

Q. '

d

rnb
U. 

U

O

U

N

M

Cd

W

Cd

N "

d

rn

icd
Fes^ 

UA 

c

d

cn

A

a

dZ

A4. 



y

O

N ( 

cd

O

C13NQ) 
N

O

O

O

o

U 

i

U

cd

a +

C 

cd

M

S. 

V —

0d3

y

V

o

ami

oM - 

0  

o

r°
i

O

O

w

o

yoyaoto

cd

bA

fL

C). •'

o  

O .  

O

O

F" 

oto

ct3

cri

a

a  

b

a   

po

o

o

w «, , 

ss 

b

a • 

aCd

04
Cdo

i

a .

ao 

ri .

fl

Oto
b

i

d

1, ° 

0

0

czs'

C7

O , 

p

m

N

N , 

V

O  

p ° 

O

OV   

O    •  

3  

O  

O

O  

O  .."' '

C

opt  ""

N ,•°• 

r-

QU °    • , 

cc3

r+ 

N

Q

0

Cdv

U ¢ 

4

cd

m

W

Q. 

b

O

0 ° 

0

Z

g

V ." ?, ^

C3

cd

O

Q. 

C,

3

0

p '

C

O

V

b4 +, 

E

0

w

O

y

O

b• 

mon°; 

Z

O

3

a°

i ? ° 

O ° 

1-

4`

a

O

O

O

O

O '

d

m

O

00

0

C

N

M

p

O

6

a. 

a

w

a

24a ° 

C410

a) 

d

w

Z

64O

O

0 ° 

O

ct

0

on

o

z

Cd

bo

03

sm. 

CZS

w° 

X

cd

0w
0) 

o

U

0

p, 

p

V 

4

Q

1..' 

o

Oc0
cn

4- 

N

o

O

U

a

0

Ov

N

O

N

a cn

w

0

O

V

a. 

M

C

Enk
y

00

P

p

N

o

o

o° 

F, 

cct

a 

w

a>

iO
P. 

o

w

o • 

b

Q  

v

o

r- 

o

o

y

O

N ( 

cd

O

C13NQ) 

N

O

O

O

o

U 

i

U

cd

a +

C 

cd

M

S. 

V —

0d3

y

V

o

ami

oM - 

0  

o

r°
i

O

O

w

o

yoyaoto

cd

bA

fL

C). •'

o  

O .  

O

O

F" 

oto

ct3

cri

a

a  

b

a   

po

o

o

w «, , 

ss 

b

a • 

aCd

04Cdo
i

a .

ao 

ri .

fl

Oto

b

i

d

1, ° 

0

0

czs'

C7

O , 

p

m

N

N , 

V

O  

p ° 

O

OV   

O    •  

3  

O  

O

O  

O  .."' '

C

opt  ""

N ,•°• 

r-

QU °    • , 

cc3

r+ 

N

Q

0

Cdv

U ¢ 

4

cd

m

W

Q. 

b

O

0 ° 

0

Z

g

V ." ?, ^

C3

cd

O

Q. 

C,

3

0

p '

C

O

V

b4 +, 

E

0

w

O

y

O

b• 

mon°; 

Z

O

3

a°

i ? ° 

O ° 

1-

4`

a

O

O

O

O

O '

d

m

O

00

0

C

N

M

p

O

6

a. 

a

w

a

24a ° 

C410

a) 

d

w

Z



Cd

0

cn

cq

Q. 

4 

5n

v °

N '. 

3

orbs

Q

o

cl

W

u. ° 

00

o ° ° ° 

H

a) 

o

0

0

w

Z

s'

b

o

a°

i

cd

a) 

d

3

o

o

It

411.
1

0~, 

3  

o

i  ° ° 

i

IS

PO

a) 

U > 

O ,, +' 

cd

a) 

O >, 

a) 

cd

cd

O

N

a) 

cd

U) 

m

a) 

ai

cd

0O  ' 

a) '

U

kn

4-. 

0  

3

Q. 

y  

b

i' .  

cd  •  

v'   

cd

U

m

v) 

7C ^, 

O

O , .- 

r

a) 

4

a) 

co

a) 

U ° ' :

t

cd

U
a) 

o , 

a) 

p. 

A4 ° 

o

0

on '" 

cd

o

00 ° 

r- 

o

ate' 

C) 

0 °  

a' 

a. 

a) 

4 '  

r > 

O

a) 

Q
a)  

s64   ° '  . 

a) , 

4-.  

o

is ¢ 

i+ 

sem. 

4-
4

i

O .-+ 

N

M

V

b

F- 

d >, 

O

O

O +

T

d

v -- 

U

cd

a) 

m

O

O

Q 

v 

cd

cd

bA

a

s. 

a) 

cd +-'  , 

vU, 
aii

ti ., 

U

O

O ° ' 

U) 

64a) 
3 ,? '

j

S". 

vi

cd

m

b ,

fl

ii

N

N `

n

a) 

cd ' 

a) 

Q + 

EU ^

t" " 

C: ; 

U

Q" 

U

O .

O

U

cd

O

O ^

p 

U

aVi ' 

O

N `

O+ 

r

M . 

V1

U  

m

cd

cid '

b

dj" 

z `

n

a) 

U

U

vn

o

a '

do
o

O

6,

3° 

o

Cd

o

a) 

t8to
b

a) 

3 = •.. 

o  

o °  

cn . 

Cd

y

r

US ° 

ani

N

V

V ^ `'' 

o :

o   

o

iG

a ; 

rn

cd

o >°° 

o

ao

b

o

d°  

0

v

O

o ° 

w

d

o

4. ° . 

V1 ° 

a) 

3

a 

a) 

U

o

H

o

o

p

a $ 

i .

b

3 , ° ° 

W

U

0

W

ami

ai ° ° >, 

o

d

c° ° `

to

ani

U ° ° ° ° 

6 '

b

W  

a) ° '  

on

3 

a °

a ; 

U

ami ° ; °

0

V

3

40. 

cnO  

o

W

a, >,  .—, 

o  

cd

0A

v 

E- 

v 

O

V

a .

b

cd

a) ° 

m

4] 

In.. 

E ., -- 

0

0

al

a) 

Apa '

ab.
io

a?

i

a,

U

o

a

pWpi 

v>

o

a

Urn° 
r4, 

o 

0

o0

cd

W

c`

d . "

o

0

o ) 

Qo

6

o ' 

a

W

o°" 

Go

cd

n ° 

to  

U

aO
oCd

c

o

pL, 

cd

Q)  

44

a) ) „ 

d >

U)

6,

c

b  

o `+ ' 

o

o

I.. 

o>  

g

fc.

o ° 

o

cppow., 

cli

u

40 °

o

p

3

a)

E-

A"° 

a ° 

U

o -- 

x ° 

O

4p•, °  

2

w ° 

3 ° 

a°

i   

pd.,  

O    

o  

o

aoi

o
a)  

a

a) 

o  

o   % 

4° 

2

H-°

o

o . 

CY ` 

ani

a

p.

o

ons  

Q

Q"

o

ed•

o,

o

Q

o

w ¢' 

w4° 
3

to

iw

Rs

3

an

o . 

a 

d

Cd

U

cod

o

Z, 

0

0

ti

o ¢ 

cd

cd



to

CC3

th

i.

r

CCS0

Cd

64 & 

Cd = 

cd = • 

tjp

0

Cd

O

O 

O

cd '" 

O

ti

C4  + 

p

cd

Cd

O

rc 

O

N

cid ^

s

C. 

4.

1U

y

U

mU

OU -
a

r

dp

c" 

O

Ln

4-

1

C '" 

p

U

y . 

0

cd

U > . ¢

p",, 

toto
0

cd

rn '"

O

a)

A'

o° 

Dao

tea°' 

3

o'

er

3' 

cd

N

op

3 > ° . 

4-

4

C'

s

o

o

U- 

cd '

12m, 

W

O

t,

p -

o   

U

Q +• 

O ° 

Cd

Cd" 

b

O

U

A

p

U ; 

p

O

U . 

u

p, 

U

O

Lt

0

cd

U

U

cid

N

C. 

L" 

C"., 

en

a

C

crU

CA

0. 

U

a 

y

U40. 

U ,, 

O

O '

C

s, 

U

t. 

u, 

y

Cd

V

O

a3

O

4r

U 

Ucd

cl

to

O

0O
O

d

U

m • 

cd

Q> 

U

p

O

Cd 

y

cd

co

O

U

N ... 

bQCd

h --- 

Cd

W
i

O

O ^

fl - 

O

U

N

Q) 

4.
1

4-. 

Nssb

C,

3

0

0

0Q) 

o

c

Cq

C

O

a

U

p

U
c

y

ybj

U

En ¢ 

A

O

cid

0

cd

4. 

aUi

m

tjo

toQ
cd

CZ

cii

b 

W

V) 

o

Cd

cd

N

ao° 
0

U

UD

m

4-

1¢

L

bm3cj

U

Q'

cjaoi
C 

0

t 

U

A

w

to

d =

N

0

3

tQ

Qd.: 

V

5°

ate

a

cd

t4

E

Q

3

o

A

U

W

U

o

U

a

y0. 

p

N

cd

O

cd ( 

r -
I

U) 

O

b

o

o

Cd

o

f

H

o

c

aaoi
3

0

to

Q

3

5

0

t

d

b

o ° 

o

U

o

o

0-

4

U

d

C

cd

U

d

po

a., 

o

H

cd

cd

cd

Vj

O

p

kn

P

F- 

b

116

to

CC3

th

i.

r

CCS0
Cd

64 & 

Cd = 

cd = • 

tjp

0

Cd

O

O 

O

cd '" 

O

ti

C4  + 

p

cd

Cd

O

rc 

O

N

cid ^

s

C. 

4.

1U

y

U

mU

OU - a

r

dp

c" 

O

Ln

4-

1

C '" 

p

U

y . 

0

cd

U > . ¢

p",, 

toto

0

cd

rn '"

O

a)

A'

o° 

Dao

tea°' 

3

o'

er

3' 

cd

N

op
3 > ° . 

4-

4

C'

s

o

o

U- 

cd '

12m, 

W

O

t,

p -

o   

U

Q +• 

O ° 

Cd

Cd" 

b

O

U

A

p

U ; 

p

O

U . 

u

p, 

U

O

Lt

0

cd

U

U

cid

N

C. 

L" 

C"., 

en

a

C

cr
U

CA

0. 

U



CdU '" ° 

o

o

ami

0

N

U

cd

Cd

o>

0

3 ' 

N

4-
4

CIO

0

64

O

O

Q. 

0

3

cd , ' 

a 

ti

y

O

O

U

p

Cd

ti

GQ ° ° ° 

o

W

o

ao
13° 

ami

U „ 

o

o

4-

4

U

4-

4

i. 

U

d

4 

U

U

OU — 
O

O

O

O

Cc

C7

in. 

f '

d

N

cd

cd

y

O

Q

U• + 

U

cd

o

P-

0iC , 

O

bq "

q ~ 

UO

a

O

COO

cd

c > ° 

a.

s 

E- °

oma  

O >, 

fx

o`

o-

d

6C), 

U

ami

a 

U ' ° -

o

d ; 

a . 

A

cd

o

p

cd

E" 

cd

U

U

E' 

U

o ° -"  

a) 

0

3

w

U

u . 

U

4a
4. }- 

j

Q) 

V

y 

N

V

p

O ° 

3 >,

o

aUi

o

o 

W

c 

p , 

U ° 

aA 

U

o

00

La

40-4

cdan -
d

o•°

b 

M

W

m

0

0

o

4

opo
p (

U

a 

o

o

3

b °° 

O" 

d

C4.° 

3

M

o

ami>,  

C) °'   

Cd  .,. 

o °  ..,   .  

a, 

Cd ° 

Acdti

I

NO

w



M



RESOLUTION 2024- 7 9

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE

AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH TEAM FOODS USA, INC. 

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro City Council believes that it is in the best interests of the citizens of Goldsboro
to encourage and support economic development through the recruitment of new industries to the City and County

and the expansion of existing industries in the City and County; and

WHEREAS, Team Foods USA, Inc. desires to purchase facilities, create jobs, and install certain machinery
and equipment in Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to encourage such development by means of offering incentives to
aid in such efforts totaling $57, 843. 00 over a 5 -year period, based on an incentive agreement with a $ 36,400,000
investment and the creation of 16 jobs on or before December 31, 2029, with incremental achievement goals

starting December 31, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the City and the County of Wayne entered into an agreement dated May 21, 2024, where the
City agreed to provide water and sewer services to the location and further agreed not to require voluntary
annexation of the property into the limits of the City, and the County agreed to share equally with the City any
ad valorem tax revenues collected from Team Foods USA, Inc. generated as a result of the improvements
referenced; and

WHEREAS, in the agreement between the City and the County, the City further agreed to enter into an
economic incentive agreement with Team Foods USA, Inc. for the provision of a grant equal to the amount of the

system development fees that would have otherwise been assessed for the provision, and thus expansion, of water

and sewer services to the location of the property to serve Team Foods USA, Inc; and

WHEREAS, the City shall provide an Economic Development Grant to Team Foods USA, Inc. with an
estimated value of $57, 843. 00 paid on behalf of Team Foods USA, Inc. at the time the system development fees
will be incurred; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has conducted a public hearing on this matter, as required by NCGS 158- 7. 1. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

1. The Goldsboro City Council hereby approves the Economic Development Agreement ( attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference) between the City of Goldsboro and Team Foods USA, Inc. 

2. The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign all necessary documents on behalf of the
City of Goldsboro in order to effectuate this transaction. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
15t" 

day of July, 2024. 

ffl 
Mayor 

f

Attested by: 

r
li

Holly Dories
Deputy City Clerk













N



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- SO

RESOLUTION NAMING TERESA ( TERRIE) L. WEBBER

AS DEPUTY FINANCE OFFICER

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 159- 24 specifies and directs that each local

government shall appoint a Finance Officer to hold office and carry out the duties prescribed by
law; and

WHEREAS, the Charter for the City of Goldsboro provides for the appointment of the
Finance Director by the City Manager; and

WHEREAS, Catherine F. Gwynn has so been designated the Finance Director, effective

January 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, Council wishes to ensure the continuity and continuation of financial
operations and adhere to the requirements of General Statute § 159- 24 in the absence or disability
of the Finance Officer; and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 159- 28 requires that a Deputy Finance
Officer designated for the purpose of signing the pre -audit certificate, must be so approved and
designated by resolution of the Board; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved Andrea Lovelace as a Deputy Finance Officer on
May 20, 2019; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to delegate preaudit duties to an additional Finance staff
member in order to be responsive and timely to departments; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is of the opinion that Teresa ( Terrie) L. Webber possesses
the requisite knowledge, experience, and qualifications to serve as a Deputy Finance Officer for

the City of Goldsboro. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

Teresa ( Terrie) L. Webber is hereby appointed as a Deputy Finance Officer with the
full power and authority to act in the place and stead of the Finance Officer in the
event of absence or disability of the appointed Finance Officer. 

This Resolution is effective upon its adoption this
15th

day of July, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

olly ones

Deputy City Clerk

harles Gaylor, 

Mayor



O



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- t 1

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE

A CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND

FORVIS, LLP FOR THE EXTENSION OF THE AUDIT OF CITY' S ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

WHEREAS, Council authorized the City to enter into a contract with Forvis, LLP on
November 6, 2023 for the audit of the City' s accounts for the year ending June 30, 2023; and

WHEREAS, there have been delays in finalizing the audit beyond the Local Government
Commissions due date, and additional time was needed to complete the audit; and

WHEREAS, it is requested that an extension be granted until June 30, 2024 and the

modified fee of $126, 635. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to execute an amendment to
the contract for an extension of time to complete the audit until June 30, 2024 and a

modified fee of $126, 635. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 15'' day of July, 2024. 

Cf hles Gaylor, IV
Mayor

Attested by: 



LGC-205 Amendment  AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2023

Whereas Primary Government Unit 

and Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU)  (if applicable) 

and Auditor 

entered into a contract in which the Auditor agreed to audit the accounts of the Primary Government Unit 
and DPCU (if applicable)  

for 
Fiscal Year Ending 

and originally to be 
submitted to the LGC on 

Audit Report Due Date
hereby agree that it is now necessary that the contract be modified as follows. 

Modified date 

Modification to fee

Original date 

Modified fee 

Date 

Plan to Prevent Future Late Submissions
If the amendment is submitted to modify the date the audit will be submitted to the LGC, please indicate the steps the unit and 
auditor will take to prevent late filing of audits in subsequent years. Audits are due to the LGC four months after fiscal year end. 
Indicate NA if this is an amendment due to a change in cost only.

Additional Information
Please provide any additional explanation or details regarding the contract modification.

By their signatures on the following pages, the Auditor, the Primary Government Unit, and the DPCU (if 
applicable), agree to these modified terms.  

Page 1 of 3 

Reason(s) for Contract Amendment

Change in scope
Issue with unit staff/turnover/workload
Issue with auditor staff/turnover/workload
Third-party financial statements not prepared by agreed-upon date
Unit did not have bank reconciliations complete for the audit period
Unit did not have reconciliations between subsidiary ledgers and general ledger complete 
Unit did not post previous years adjusting journal entries resulting in incorrect beginning 
balances in the general ledger
Unit did not have information required for audit complete by the agreed-upon time 
Delay in component unit reports
Software - implementation issue
Software - system failure
Software - ransomware/cyberattack
Natural or other disaster
Other (please explain)

 Primary 
 (choose 1)

 Other
(choose 0-2)

Modification to date submitted to LGC

Original fee 

City of Goldsboro, North Carolina

Forvis Mazars, LLP

06/30/2023 06/30/2024

06/30/24

✔
$70,000 $126,635

NA

The FY 2023 engagement letter calls a contract amendment for billing at 90% of standard rates for engagement 
hours in excess of 310 hours. The final proposed billing includes an additional 20% discount for the 265 hours 
incurred in excess of 310 hours.



LGC-205 Amended AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2023

Page 2 of 3 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

AUDIT FIRM 

Audit Firm* 

Authorized Firm Representative* (typed or printed) Signature* 

Date* Email Address 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT 

Governmental Unit* 

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Amended 
Audit Contract* (If required by governing board policy)

Mayor/Chairperson* (typed or printed) Signature* 

Date Email Address 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature 

Date Email Address 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 
*ONLY REQUIRED IF FEES ARE MODIFIED IN THE AMENDED CONTRACT*

(Pre-audit certificate not required for hospitals) 

 Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1) 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer* Signature* 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate* Email Address* 

Forvis Mazars, LLP

Chad Cook

07/09/24 chad.cook@us.forvismazars.com

City of Goldsboro, North Carolina

Charles Gaylor, IV

Catherine Gwynn

CGwynn@goldsboronc.gov



LGC-205 Amended AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022 

Page 3 of 3 

SIGNATURE PAGE – DPCU 
(complete only if applicable) 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

DPCU 

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Amended Audit 
Contract (If required by governing board policy)

DPCU Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature 

Date Email Address 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature 

Date Email Address 

DPCU  – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 
*ONLY REQUIRED IF FEES ARE MODIFIED IN THE AMENDED CONTRACT*

(Pre-audit certificate not required for hospitals) 

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1) 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

DPCU Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address 



P



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- $ -,)-- 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE NEW SOLID WASTE REAR LOADER, SIDE LOADER, 

AND AUTOMATED LEAF VAC TRUCKS

WHEREAS, funds to purchase a new Solid Waste Rear Loader Refuse Truck for $31 OK were approved in

the FY 24- 25 budget process; and

WHEREAS, funds to purchase a new Solid Waste Side Loader Refuse Truck $ 400K were approved in the

FY 24- 25 budget process; and

WHEREAS, funds to purchase a new Solid Waste Automated Leaf Vac Truck for $300K were approved

in the FY 24- 25 budget process; and

WHEREAS, Carolina Environmental Systems, Inc. in Kernersville, NC can provide a new DuraPack 5000

Rear Loader Refuse Truck within two months for $ 255, 942; and

WHEREAS, Amick Equipment in Mebane, NC can provide a New Way ROTOPAK Side Loader Refuse
Truck within four to six months for $ 395, 312; and

WHEREAS, Carolina Industrial Equipment in Charlotte, NC can provide a 2024 Xtreme Vac Automated

Leaf Machine within two months for $ 298, 773. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the purchase of a Heil DuraPack 5000 Rear Loader Refuse Truck
from Carolina Environmental Systems, Inc. in Kernersville, NC in the amount of $255, 942; and

2. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the purchase of a New Way ROTOPAK Side Loader Refuse
Truck from Amick Equipment in Mebane, NC in the amount of $395, 312; and

3. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the purchase of an Xtreme Vac Automated Leaf Truck from
Carolina Industrial Equipment in Charlotte, NC in the amount of $298, 773; and

4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this the 15' day of July, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Holly ones

Deputy City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, 

Mayor



Q



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- $ 3

RESOLUTION TO ACQUIRE HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM PROPERTIES

WHEREAS, FEMA' s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program provides funding to state, local, tribal
and territorial governments so they can develop hazard mitigation plans and rebuild in a way that reduces, 
or mitigates, future disaster losses in their communities after a presidentially declared disaster; and

WHEREAS, Wayne County was a Hurricane Matthew Hazard Mitigation Grant Program - Major
Disaster Declaration ( HMGP- DR) subgrantee and oversaw the acquisition of properties located within

the entire county, including the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro requests to acquire the following fifteen ( 15) properties from
the County of Wayne: 709 W. Chestnut Street, Goldsboro ( Pin: 2599565546); 106 Brock Street, 

Goldsboro ( Pin: 2598660348); 509 Forest Hill Drive, Goldsboro ( Pin: 3519294620); 430 Truman Street, 

Goldsboro ( Pin: 2598480719); 800 S. George Street, Goldsboro ( Pin: 2599626006); 311 Glen Oak

Drive, Goldsboro ( Pin: 3610103022); 400 S. Alabama Avenue, Goldsboro ( Pin: 2599553288); 903

Canal Street, Goldsboro ( Pin: 2599339797); 401 S. Alabama Avenue, Goldsboro ( Pin: 2599552358); 

321 E. Chestnut Street, Goldsboro ( Pin: 3509044915); 603 Whitted Court, Goldsboro ( Pin: 

2599558527); 2007 Glenhaven Lane, Goldsboro ( Pin: 2598654781); 301 McArthur Street, Goldsboro

Pin: 2598655276); 203 Winslow Circle, Goldsboro ( Pin: 2598793078); 2000 Glenhaven Lane, 

Goldsboro ( Pin: 2598658903); and

WHEREAS, the City would like to use the properties for recreational and/ or beautification purposes, 
such as pocket parks; and

WHEREAS, the deed transferring the properties will contain the necessary HMGP restrictions to
ensure compliance with all federal and state regulations; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro agrees to be bound by the provisions of 44 CFR 80. 19
following transfer of the properties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. Council hereby authorizes the Interim City Manager to sign the General Warranty Deed, and
acquire properties as listed in Exhibit A. 

2. The City Attorney shall be the authorized City representative at the closing for the properties, 
and shall be authorized to sign all closing documents. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
15th

day of July, 2024. 

Attested by: 

00*
1*

04- 

Holly'VJoJes
Deputy City Clerk

y
G < 

Charles Gaylor, I

Mayor

z



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By/Return to: Andrew J. Neal, Wayne County Staff Attorney, PO Box 227, Goldsboro, NC 27533 
The attorney preparing this instrument has made no title examination of this property  
and expresses no opinion as to title unless contained in a separate written certificate.  

 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
        GENERAL WARRANTY DEED 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 THIS DEED, made and entered into this 6th day of August, 2024 by and between COUNTY 
OF WAYNE, a body politic and corporate organized under the laws of the State of North Carolina, 
having a mailing address of P.O. Box 227, Goldsboro, NC 27533 hereinafter referred to as 
“Grantor”; and the CITY OF GOLDSBORO, a North Carolina municipal corporation, having a 
mailing address of P.O. Drawer A, Goldsboro, NC 27533, hereinafter referred to as “Grantee.” 
 

The designation Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs, 
successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as 
required by context. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 That said Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars to it in hand paid, the 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and 
convey unto the Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns in fee simple all of those certain 
tracts or parcels of land lying and being in Wayne County, North Carolina, and more particularly 
described as follows: 
 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A 
 

The property described IS NOT the primary residence of the Grantor.  
  

The conveyance is made subject to those Deed Restrictions and covenants labeled Exhibit 
B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.    



 
To have and hold the aforesaid tract or parcel of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.    
  

And the Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor is seized of said premises in fee 
simple, has the right to convey the same in fee simple, that title is marketable and free and clear of 
all encumbrances, except as herein set forth, and that Grantor will warrant and defend the title 
against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever.   

 
This conveyance is made subject to restrictions and easements appearing in the chain of 

title, if any. 
 

 In Testimony Whereof, said Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seal the day and year 
first above written. 
 

COUNTY OF WAYNE 
 

 
BY:  ___________________________ (SEAL)           

       Chris Gurley, Chairman   
       Wayne County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST:  
 
     
Carol Bowden 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WAYNE  
 
 I, __________________________, Notary Public of Wayne County, do hereby certify that 
Carol Bowden personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that she is Clerk to the 
Board of the Commissioners of the COUNTY OF WAYNE, a body politic and corporate, and that 
by authority duly given and as the act of the County of Wayne, the foregoing instrument was signed 
in its name by its Chairman, Chris Gurley, sealed with its seal and attested by herself as its Clerk.   
  

Witness my hand and official seal, this the 6th day of August, 2024. 
 
 
                              

NOTARY PUBLIC 
My commission expires: ______________________ 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

PARCEL ONE: 709 W. CHESTNUT STREET, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2599565546) 
 
BEING all of Lot No. 5 of the Chestnut Circle Subdivision as shown on plat or map thereof 
recorded in Plat Book 7 at Page 65, of the Wayne County Public Registry, reference to which is 
hereby made for a better and more perfect description of said land.   
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3434, Page 490 
of the Wayne County Registry.   

 
 

PARCEL TWO: 106 BROCK STREET, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2598660348)  
 
BEING all of Lot No. 8 of the Cobb-Brock lots as shown on plat thereof by A.E. Little, 
Registered Surveyor, dated July 1960, and recorded in Plat Book 7, Page 124, Wayne County 
Registry.  
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3440, Page 255 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
  

 
PARCEL THREE: 509 FOREST HILL DRIVE, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 3519294620)  
 
BEING all of Lot No. 3 of Forest Hill Subdivision, as shown on a plat thereof by A.E. Little, 
Registered Surveyor, dated July 4, 1959, and recorded in Plat Book 7 at Page 114 in the Wayne 
County Registry.   
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3433, Page 696 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
 
PARCEL FOUR: 430 TRUMAN STREET, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2598480719)  
 
BEING all of that that tract or parcel of land containing 0.15 acres, more or less, as depicted on 
that map for recorded entitled “SURVEY FOR WAYNE COUNTY HMGP PROJECT 4285-057-
R 430 TRUMAN STREET BEING THE RICKY LEE HARPER TRACT”, prepared by Simon R. 
Cox, Professional Land Surveyor, dated February 4, 2019 which is attached as Exhibit C to the 
Deed recorded in Book 3455, Page 545 of the Wayne County Registry.   
  

 
PARCEL FIVE: 800 S. GEORGE STREET, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2599626006)  
 
BEGINNING at a stake in the Southeastern intersectional corner of George Street and Birch Street, 
and runs thence Eastwardly along the Southern edge of Birch Street 240 feet to a stake, the 
Southwestern intersectional corner of Birch Street and Davis Street; thence Southwardly along the 



Western edge of Davis Street 77.5 feet to a stake; thence Westwardly and parallel with Birch Street 
240 feet to a stake in the Eastern edge of George Street; thence Northwardly and along the Eastern 
edge of George Street 77. 5 feet to the point of beginning, and being all of Lots Nos: 1 and 48 and 
the Northernmost 37 ½ feet of Lots Nos. 2 and 47 of the Subdivision known as Southside, as shown 
on a map prepared by Lewis Godwin dated May 25-30, 1911, and recorded in Book 100 at Page 
596 in the Wayne County Registry, excepting ten feet on the Eastern edge of George Street which 
was conveyed to the City of Goldsboro by agreement dated October 24, 1947, and recorded in 
Book 334 at Page 244 in said Registry. 
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3455, Page 129 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
 
PARCEL SIX: 311 GLEN OAK DRIVE, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 3610103022)  
BEGINNING at a stake in the Eastern edge of Glen Oak Drive at the Southwestern corner of Lot 
No. 19 of Handley Acres Subdivision and runs thence with the Southern line of said Lot North 71 
deg. 08' E. 208.78 ft. to an iron stake; thence with the A. H. Handley line S. 22 deg. E. 184.68 feet. 
to an iron stake, a corner of Lot No. 17 of Handley Acres Subdivision; thence with the Northern 
line of said lot S. 85 deg. 22' W. 222.11 ft. to an iron stake in the Eastern edge of Glen Oak Drive; 
thence with the Eastern edge of Glen Oak Drive in a Northwesterly direction along the curve 
130.06 ft. (measured along the arc) to the point of beginning Being Lot No. 18 of the Handley 
Acres Subdivision as shown on a plat recorded in Plat book 7 at Page 122 of the Wayne County 
Registry.  
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3442, Page 305 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
 
PARCEL SEVEN: 400 S. ALABAMA AVENUE, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2599553288)  
 
BEING all of Lot #103, as shown on a plat prepared by Bobby Rex Kornegay, Registered 
Surveyor, No. L-944, entitled Subdivision No. 3 of Property of City of Goldsboro, West Central 
Redevelopment Area No. 1, Project N.C. R-68, and recorded in Plat Cabinet A, Slide 54AA of the 
Wayne County Registry.  
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3430, Page 43 
of the Wayne County Registry.   

 
 

PARCEL EIGHT: 903 CANAL STREET, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2599339797)  
 
BEING all of that tract or parcel of land containing 8,392.17 square feet, as depicted on that map 
for record entitled "SURVEY FOR WAYNE COUNTY HMGP PROJECT 4285-057-R 903 
CANAL STREET BEING THE YVONNE PARKER TRACT", prepared by Simon R. Cox, 
Professional Land Surveyor, dated February 4, 2019, a copy of said map being attached as Exhibit 
C to the Deed recorded in Book 3466, Page 347 of the Wayne County Registry.   



 
Subject to the permanent, non-exclusive and appurtenant easement reserved by Yvonne Parker in 
the Deed recorded in Book 3466, Page 347 for the purposes of ingress, egress, and regress, and for 
installation and maintenance of utilities between Canal Street and property owned by Yvonne 
Paker to the northwest of the property hereinabove described, over, under, across, and upon that 
area depicted as "PROPOSED 15' ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT" on the above 
referenced map. Said easement shall be kept open and unobstructed at all times for the joint and 
several use of the Grantee and Yvonne Parker and their respective heirs, successors and assigns. It 
is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this easement is being reserved for the benefit 
of the lands owned by Yvonne Paker described in Book 748, Page 110, Wayne County Registry, 
and shall be appurtenant to and run with said lands. 
 
 
PARCEL NINE: 401 S. ALABAMA AVENUE, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2599552358)  
 
BEING all of Lot 99 as shown on plat entitled “Subdivision No. 5 of Property of City of Goldsboro, 
West Central Redevelopment Area No. 1, Project N.C. R-68 and Revision of Lot Nos. 111 & 115 
of Subdivision No. 4 of Property of City of Goldsboro, West Central Redevelopment Area No. 1, 
Project N.C. R-68” plat of which is recorded in Plat Cabinet A, Slide 200-AB in the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Wayne County.   
 
Also being that property shown on the map recorded in Book 3478, Page 400 of the Wayne County 
Registry.   
 
 
PARCEL TEN: 321 E. CHESTNUT STREET, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 3509044915)  
 
BEGINNING at a point on the North side of Chestnut Street in the City of Goldsboro 
approximately 88 feet Easterly from the "Big Ditch" and running thence with said Chestnut Street 
N. 67-03 W. approximately 88 feet to the "Big Ditch"; thence with the course of the "Big Ditch" 
in a Northeasterly direction something more than 205 feet to the Northwest of Lot #5 in Block "C" 
of the City View property of John D. Langston, a survey and plat of which was made by E.G. 
Porter, Civil Engineer, April 26 to November 15, 1926; thence S. 67-03 E. 93.95 feet to the 
Northeast corner of Lot #3 in Block "C" of said plat; thence S. 22-44 W. 202.25 feet to the 
beginning; and being Lot Nos.·4 and 5 in Block "C" on said plat of City View property of the said 
John D. Langston, said plat being recorded in Map Book 3, Page 9, in the Wayne County Registry; 
and being the same property conveyed to Bessie L. Conekin by deed dated December 6, 1939, 
which deed is duly recorded in Book 261, Page 522 in the Wayne County Registry. And being the 
same land devised to Shirley D. Conekin, et al by the Last Will and Testament of Bessie L. 
Conekin, which Will is duly probated in the office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Wayne County, 
North Carolina. And being the same property conveyed to Daniel Washington by deed recorded 
in Deed Book 1437, Page 807, of the Wayne County Registry. And being the same property 
devised to Vickie W. Spriggs by the Last Will and Testament of Daniel Washington, which Will 
is duly probated in the office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Wayne County, North Carolina.  



Subject to those certain deeds of easement dated June 19, 1979 and July 8, 1988 to the City of 
Goldsboro, which deeds of easement are recorded in Book 969, Page 77, and Book 1210, Page 
630, respectively, in the Wayne County Registry. 
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3473, Page 806 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 

 
PARCEL ELEVEN: 603 WHITTED COURT, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2599558527)  
 
BEING all of Lot #23 as shown on Subdivision #3 of Property of City of Goldsboro, West Central 
Redevelopment Area No. 1, Project NCR-68, a plat of which is recorded in Plat Cabinet A, Slide 
54AA, in the office of the Register of Deeds of Wayne County.  
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3435, Page 84 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
 
PARCEL TWELVE: 2007 GLENHAVEN LANE, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2598654781)  
 
BEING all of Lot 14 of the P.H. McArthur Subdivision near Goldsboro, North Carolina, as shown 
on a plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 6, Page 117 of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3721, Page 357 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
 
PARCEL THIRTEEN: 301 MCARTHUR STREET, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2598655276) 
 
BEGINNING at a stake at the Northeastern intersectional corner of McArthur Street and South 
William Street Extension, and runs thence with the Eastern edge of South William Street Extension 
N. 20° E. 200 feet to a stake, corner of Lot No. 21; thence with the Southern line of said Lot No. 
21, S. 70° E. 100 feet to a stake; thence S. 20° W., parallel with South William Street Extension, 
200 feet to a stake in the Northern edge of McArthur Street thence with the Northern edge of 
McArthur Street N. 70° W. 100 feet to the beginning; and being the Western one-half of Lots Nos. 
27 and 24 in the P. H. McArthur Subdivision, as shown on a map thereof duly recorded in the 
office of the Register of Deeds of Wayne County in Plat Book 6 at Page 117. And being the 
identical property conveyed to Robert M. Pate and wife, Lillie W. Pate, by William J. Waters and 
wife, Mary G. Waters, by deed dated November 16, 1961 and recorded in Book 559 at Page 3 of 
the Wayne County Registry. 
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3444, Page 413 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
 
 



PARCEL FOURTEEN: 203 WINSLOW CIRCLE, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2598793078) 
BEING Lot No. 128 in W.F. Nufer Subdivision, Section Five, as shown in Plat Book 16 at Page 
29 of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3492, Page 506 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
PARCEL FIFTEEN: 2000 GLENHAVEN LANE, GOLDSBORO (PIN: 2598658903) 
 
BEING all of Lot Number 6 of P.H. McArthur Subdivision, according to a map or plat thereof 
recorded in Plat Book 6 at Page 117 in the Wayne County Registry.  
 
Also being that property shown on the map attached to the Deed recorded in Book 3691, Page 181 
of the Wayne County Registry.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT B 
Deed Restrictions and Covenants 

 
In reference to the property or properties (“Property”) conveyed by the Deed between Wayne 
County participating in the federally-assisted acquisition project (“the Grantor”) and the City of 
Goldsboro, (“the Grantee”), its successors and assigns: 
 
WHEREAS, The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, ("The 
Stafford Act"), 42 U.S.C. § 5121 et seq., identifies the use of disaster relief funds under § 5170c, 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program ("HMGP"), including the acquisition and relocation of 
structures in the floodplain; 
 
WHEREAS, the mitigation grant program provides a process for a local government, through the 
State, to apply for federal funds for mitigation assistance to acquire interests in property, 
including the purchase of structures in the floodplain, to demolish and/or remove the structures, 
and to maintain the use of the Property as open space in perpetuity; 
 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Public Safety has applied for and been awarded 
such funding from the Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (“FEMA”) and has entered into a mitigation grant program with FEMA and herein 
incorporated by reference; making it a mitigation grant program grantee; 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is located in Wayne County and Wayne County participates in the 
National Flood Insurance Program (“NFIP”) and is in good standing with NFIP as of the date of 
the Deed; 
 
WHEREAS, Wayne County, acting by and through the Wayne County Board of Commissioners, 
has applied for and been awarded federal funds pursuant to an agreement with the State of North 
Carolina (“State-Local Agreement”), and herein incorporated by reference, making it a 
mitigation grant program subgrantee; 
 
WHEREAS, the terms of the mitigation grant program statutory authorities, Federal program 
requirements consistent with 44 C.F.R. Part 80, the Grant Agreement, and the State-local 
Agreement require that the Grantee agree to conditions that restrict the use of the land to open 
space in perpetuity in order to protect and preserve natural floodplain values;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the grant is made subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Terms. Pursuant to the terms of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program statutory authorities, 
Federal program requirements consistent with 44 C.F.R. Part 80, the Grant Agreement, and the 
State-local Agreement, the following conditions and restrictions shall apply in perpetuity to the 
Property described in the attached deed and acquired by the Grantee pursuant to FEMA program 
requirements concerning the acquisition of property for open space: 
 

a. Compatible uses.  The Property shall be dedicated and maintained in perpetuity as open 
space for the conservation of natural floodplain functions.  Such uses may include: parks 



for outdoor recreational activities; wetlands management; nature reserves; cultivation; 
grazing; camping (except where adequate warning time is not available to allow 
evacuation); unimproved, unpaved parking lots; buffer zones; and other uses consistent 
with FEMA guidance for open space acquisition, Hazard Mitigation Assistance, 
Requirements for Property Acquisition and Relocation for Open Space. 
 
b. Structures.  No new structures or improvements shall be erected on the Property other 
than: 

i. A public facility that is open on all sides and functionally related to a designated 
open space or recreational use; 
 
ii. A public rest room; or 
 
iii. A structure that is compatible with open space and conserves the natural 
function of the floodplain, including the uses described in Paragraph 1.a., above, 
and approved by the FEMA Administrator in writing before construction of the 
structure begins. 

Any improvements on the Property shall be in accordance with proper floodplain 
management policies and practices.  Structures built on the Property according to 
paragraph b. of this section shall be floodproofed or elevated to at least the base 
flood level plus 1 foot of freeboard, or greater, if required by FEMA, or if 
required by any State, Tribal, or local ordinance, and in accordance with criteria 
established by the FEMA Administrator. 

c. Disaster Assistance and Flood Insurance.  No Federal entity or source may provide 
disaster assistance for any purpose with respect to the Property, nor may any application 
for such assistance be made to any Federal entity or source.  The Property is not eligible 
for coverage under the NFIP for damage to structures on the property occurring after the 
date of the property settlement, except for pre-existing structures being relocated off the 
property as a result of the project. 

d. Transfer. The Grantee, including successors in interest, shall convey any interest in the 
Property only if the FEMA Regional Administrator, through the State, gives prior written 
approval of the transferee in accordance with this paragraph. 

i. The request by the Grantee, through the State, to the FEMA Regional 
Administrator must include a signed statement from the proposed 
transferee that it acknowledges and agrees to be bound by the terms of this 
section, and documentation of its status as a qualified conservation 
organization if applicable. 
 
ii. The Grantee may convey a property interest only to a public entity or to 
a qualified conservation organization. However, the Grantee may convey 
an easement or lease to a private individual or entity for purposes 



compatible with the uses described in paragraph (a), of this section, with 
the prior approval of the FEMA Regional Administrator, and so long as 
the conveyance does not include authority to control and enforce the terms 
and conditions of this section. 
 
iii. If title to the Property is transferred to a public entity other than one 
with a conservation mission, it must be conveyed subject to a conservation 
easement that shall be recorded with the deed and shall incorporate all 
terms and conditions set forth in this section, including the easement 
holder’s responsibility to enforce the easement.  This shall be 
accomplished by one of the following means: 

a) The Grantee shall convey, in accordance with this paragraph, a 
conservation easement to an entity other than the title holder, 
which shall be recorded with the deed, or 
 
b) At the time of title transfer, the Grantee shall retain such 
conservation easement, and record it with the deed. 

iv. Conveyance of any property interest must reference and incorporate the 
original deed restrictions providing notice of the conditions in this section 
and must incorporate a provision for the property interest to revert to the 
State, Tribe, or local government in the event that the transferee ceases to 
exist or loses its eligible status under this section. 

2. Inspection.  FEMA, its representatives and assigns including the State or Tribe shall have the 
right to enter upon the Property, at reasonable times and with reasonable notice, for the purpose 
of inspecting the Property to ensure compliance with the terms of this part, the Property 
conveyance and of the grant award. 

3. Monitoring and Reporting. Every three years on October 1, the Grantee (mitigation grant 
program subgrantee), in coordination with any current successor in interest, shall submit through 
the State to the FEMA Regional Administrator a report certifying that the Grantee has inspected 
the Property within the month preceding the report, and that the Property continues to be 
maintained consistent with the provisions of 44 C.F.R. Part 80, the property conveyance, and the 
grant award. 

4. Enforcement. The Grantee (mitigation grant program subgrantee), the State, FEMA, and their 
respective representatives, successors and assigns, are responsible for taking measures to bring 
the Property back into compliance if the Property is not maintained according to the terms of 44 
C.F.R. Part 80, the property conveyance, and the grant award.  The relative rights and 
responsibilities of FEMA, the State, the Grantee, and subsequent holders of the property interest 
at the time of enforcement, shall include the following: 

a. The State will notify the Grantee and any current holder of the property interest in 
writing and advise them that they have 60 days to correct the violation. 



i. If the Grantee or any current holder of the property interest fails to demonstrate 
a good faith effort to come into compliance with the terms of the grant within the 
60-day period, the State shall enforce the terms of the grant by taking any 
measures it deems appropriate, including but not limited to bringing an action at 
law or in equity in a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
ii. FEMA, its representatives, and assignees may enforce the terms of the grant by 
taking any measures it deems appropriate, including but not limited to 1 or more 
of the following: 

a) Withholding FEMA mitigation awards or assistance from the State or 
Tribe, and Grantee; and current holder of the property interest. 
 
b) Requiring transfer of title. The Grantee or the current holder of the 
property interest shall bear the costs of bringing the Property back into 
compliance with the terms of the grant; or 
 
c) Bringing an action at law or in equity in a court of competent 
jurisdiction against any or all of the following parties: the State, the Tribe, 
the local community, and their respective successors. 

5. Amendment. This agreement may be amended upon signatures of FEMA, the State, and the 
Grantee only to the extent that such amendment does not affect the fundamental and statutory 
purposes underlying the agreement. 
 
6. Severability.  Should any provision of this grant or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance be found to be invalid or unenforceable, the rest and remainder of the provisions of 
this grant and their application shall not be affected and shall remain valid and enforceable. 
  
 
 
 





CITY OF GOLDSBORO HMGP PROPERTIES
WAYNE COUNTY HMGP 4285-057R ACQUISITION PROJECT

NC PIN HMGP- 
EMGRANTS 
PROPERTY 

NUMBER

Property Address

2599565546 204 709 W Chestnut Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530
2598660348 4 106 Brock Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530
3519294620 21 509 Forest Hill Drive, Goldsboro, NC 27534
2598480719 55 430 Truman Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530
2599626006 42 800 S George Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530
3610103022 22 311 Glen Oak Drive, Goldsboro, NC 27534
2599553288 40 400 S Alabama Avenue, Goldsboro, NC 27530
2599339797 68 903 Canal Street, Goldsboro, NC 27534
2599552358 41 401 S Alabama Avenue, Goldsboro, NC 27530
3509044915 11 321 E Chestnut Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530
2599558527 63 603 Whitted Court, Goldsboro, NC 27530
2598654781 24 2007 Glenhaven Lane, Goldsboro, NC 27530
2598655276 31 301 McArthur Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530
2598793078 64 203 Winslow Circle, Goldsboro, NC 27530
2598658903 23 2000 Glenhaven Lane, Goldsboro, NC 27530



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

June 2024  

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Report not available at time of posting

Report not available at time of posting

Report not available at time of posting

Item R



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
June 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  July 8, 2024 
 
• The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met for their final 23-24 meeting on June 5th.      
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) rescheduled their June 11th regular monthly 

meeting to June 18th to attend the Special City Council meeting but did not meet on June 18th due to no quorum. 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) does not meet during the month of June. 

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff attended the City Wellness Grilling event at the HUB on June 5th.  
2. Staff attended a public safety meeting on June 10th.  
3. Staff facilitated Jamz Out Juneteenth in partnership with Curtis Media on June 15th. 
4. Staff attended the District 4 Listening Tour on June 29th.  
5. CR&D department staff meetings were held on June 3rd, 10th, & 27th. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended a Choice Neighborhood Pocket Park meeting on June 3rd.   
2. Staff attended a Choice Neighborhood bimonthly meeting on June 3rd.    
3. Staff met with Procurement Mgr. to discuss CDBG Rehab. on June 14th. 
4. Staff met with the City of Rocky Mount’s CD Manager to discuss department makeup on June 14th.  
5. Staff attended a HUD HOME Proposed Rule listening session on June 18th.  
6. Staff met with ACM to discuss proposed CDBG activity on June 25th.  
7. Staff facilitated a CDBG Rehab. Pre-bid meeting with Procurement Mgr. on June 27th.  
8. Staff attended a HUD-provided CDBG-CV Technical Assistance session on June 27th.   
9. Staff engaged in 2 HUD Consultations in the month of June.  

 
• The Department received two (2) complaints and nineteen (19) requests for assistance for the month of June. *Please 

refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2024 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 2 0 1 2 1 2       1 
Other Requests 18 17 16 22 22 19       19 

 
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2 1 1 1 0 2 1 
Other Requests 27 36 14 15 19 25 32 25 20 20 15 17 22 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
June 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared: July 8, 2024 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
         

 
Nature of Complaint       

 
Resolution 

Housing Follow up complaint on 
6/3/2024 to intake 
completed on 5/16/2024; 
Case again referred to Legal 
Aid of NC 

Local Agency Denial of 
Services 

Did not wish to file a 
complaint; Inquired about 
City Council Public 
Comment Period, City 
Council representation, and 
federal assistance in high-
crime areas 

 
Assistance with Resources 
  

Resource Requested            
   

Number of 
Requests 

Resolution 

Home Repair 10 Application provided /Application follow-up provided 
First-Time Homebuyer 
 

3 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Homelessness Assistance 2 Consulted local agencies for help/Referred to Community Resource 
Listing 

Envelope to return 
Rehab. application 

1 Envelope mailed 

Food Assistance 1 Referred to United Way and Community Resource Listing 
GYC 1 Provided application details 
MCPD Disability Walk 
2024 

1 Informed that 2024 walk would not be rescheduled 

Total Requests: 19  
 



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
June 2024 
Prepared by:  Jonathan Perry                     
Date Prepared:  07-02-24 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Final payment has been made to the contractor; 
• Staff is working on project closeout with NCDOT. 

 
Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 

• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation; 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and is 85% complete; 
• Phase III is under construction. Laying 24” force main down Carver Blvd. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are on hold until the vacated Construction Inspector 

position has been filled. 
 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Final deliverables are under review by staff. 
 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Plans and specifications are being reviewed by DWI. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• City Council awarded a contract for $2,037,500 to Duke’s Root Control, Inc. of Elgin, Illinois on 

October 2, 2023; 
• This project is 90% complete. 

 
SJAFB MAG Meter 

• The Wooten Company has completed the SCADA integration and electrical design; 
• Staff is working on contract documents. 

 



2 

NCSU Floodprint Project 
• Letter of interest scored high with the BRIC Grant; 
• Staff is currently reviewing Request for Qualifications for design, engineering, and permitting 

services for the Big Ditch Stream Restoration and Infrastructure Improvements Project. 
 
WRF Plant Expansion 

• Staff recommended and City Council approved the selection of Crowder Construction/Hazen and 
Sawyer for the WRF Expansion Project based on the committee’s overall evaluation of their 
demonstrated capabilities and collaborative approach; 

• Working with Crowder and Hazen on finalizing contracts. 
 
I & I Reduction Project 

• Staff is working on plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
JUNE 2024 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: July 7, 2024 
 

 

FY 22-23
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues May-23 Adjusted Budget May-24 Collected
General Fund 39,607,177$      53,111,246$           40,979,837$      77.16%
Utility Fund 21,535,469        27,237,001              22,451,636        82.43%
Downtown District Fund 103,453               112,215                    105,154               93.71%
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,022,611           1,465,450                 1,029,736           70.27%
Stormwater Fund 1,859,348           2,070,655                 1,569,285           75.79%
     Total 64,128,057$      83,996,567$           66,135,648$      78.74%

Expenditures
General Fund 35,935,672$      53,111,246$           42,781,858$      80.55%
Utility Fund 14,469,403        27,237,001 18,525,917 68.02%
Downtown District Fund 61,982                  112,215 65,128                  58.04%
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,021,103           1,465,450 960,338 65.53%
Stormwater Fund 1,794,909           2,070,655 1,472,802 71.13%
     Total 53,283,069$      83,996,567$           63,806,045$      75.96%

FY 22-23
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

May-23 Adjusted Budget May-24 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 19,053,605$      20,647,821$           20,270,061$      98.17%
Charges for Services 26,029,229        30,835,722              27,881,100        90.42%
Revenue Other Agencies 11,324,770        16,427,501              10,796,552        65.72%
Other Revenues 4,391,457           4,200,125                 3,497,520           83.27%
Fund Balance -                         8,194,985                 -                         0.00%
Shared Services 3,328,996           3,690,414                 3,690,414           100.00%
     Total 64,128,057$      83,996,567$           66,135,648$      78.74%

Expenditures
Labor 23,239,973$      36,969,947$           31,281,875$      84.61%
Non-Labor 30,043,095        47,026,620              32,524,169        69.16%
     Total 53,283,069$      83,996,567$           63,806,045$      75.96%

FY 22-23 Actual Total 
Collections Actual May-24 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 46,249$               9,997$                       40,996$               
Surplus 81,510$               -$                            305$                      

FY 23-24

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 23-24

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Prepared Date: 7/8/24 11:40 AM
Prepared By: Catherine F. Gwynn
Reviewed Date: 7/8/24 12:03 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 6/30/2024 5/30/2024 6/30/2023 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 2,619,042.96$               2,593,926.92$               2,655,738.12$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 28,587,198.65$            25,493,467.60$            8,084,987.99$               4.33%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 633,492.38$                  632,782.41$                  624,873.05$                  1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 -$                                 -$                                 259,499.69$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 -$                                 -$                                 9,143,708.97$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,782,905.91$               4,762,480.01$               4,539,303.54$               n/a
Truist MMA 27,532,222.30$            27,458,979.12$            24,936,358.96$            3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,522.46$               2,380,502.95$               2,380,284.10$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 343,454.54$                  343,396.07$                  340,182.27$                  0.25%
Totals 66,880,839.20$           63,667,535.08$           52,966,936.69$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
June 30, 2024

Cash & Investment FY2024_1.xlsx 6-30-24 7/8/2024 12:04 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
Paramount Adam Twiss Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (9,750)$                             
Paramount Adam Twiss Cell Phone Stipend 200$                             -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Employee Christmas Party -$                              (400)$                                 
Paramount Adam Twiss Cleaning Supplies 400$                             -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Advertising 550$                             -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Salaries & Wages Part-Time 7,500$                         -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Salaries & Wages Perm. Part-Time 1,850$                         -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Clothing Allowance -$                              (285)$                                 
Paramount Adam Twiss Office Supplies -$                              (100)$                                 
Paramount Adam Twiss Salaries & Wages Overtime 400$                             -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Mayor's Star Award 85$                               -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Performance Series -$                              (4,700)$                             
Paramount Adam Twiss Postage-Internal Charges only! 100$                             -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Paramount Ticket Payments 4,150$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Paramount 15,235$                       (15,235)$                           

Inspections Allan Anderson Salaries & Wages Regular 957$                             -$                                   
Inspections Allan Anderson Travel -$                              (1,293)$                             
Inspections Allan Anderson Contract Services 336$                             -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Inspections 1,293$                         (1,293)$                             

IT Scott Williams Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                   
IT Scott Williams Software License Fees -$                              (23,300)$                           
IT Scott Williams Building Maintenance 35,000$                       -$                                   
IT Scott Williams Cisco Smart Net Maintenance -$                              (11,700)$                           

Transfers - Jun 2024 - IT 35,000$                       (35,000)$                           

Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Other Training -$                              (929)$                                 
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Employee Christmas Party -$                              (821)$                                 
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Telephone 1,750$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Public Works Admin 1,750$                         (1,750)$                             

PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Tree Service -$                              (1,800)$                             
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Telephone 1,800$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - PW Cemetery 1,800$                         (1,800)$                             

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 207$                             -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (300)$                                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Bonus -$                              (905)$                                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Trash Container Purchases -$                              (700)$                                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Part-Time 2,500$                         -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Dumpsters -$                              (2,150)$                             
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 44$                               -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Printing -$                              (1,121)$                             
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Overtime -$                              (500)$                                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Electricity 925$                             -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Wellness Earnings -$                              (2,000)$                             
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Holiday Pay 4,000$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - PW Solid Waste 7,676$                         (7,676)$                             

Engineering Jonathan Perry Education Reimbursement 2,500$                         -$                                   
Engineering Jonathan Perry Other Training -$                              (2,500)$                             

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Engineering 2,500$                         (2,500)$                             

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_11.xlsx Transfers  Jun 7/7/2024 9:03 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Police Mike West Operational Supplies 23,500$                       -$                                   
Police Mike West Other Training -$                              (1,113)$                             
Police Mike West Security System 1,113$                         -$                                   
Police Mike West Shoes-Uniform -$                              (3,500)$                             
Police Mike West Tasers -$                              (20,000)$                           

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Police 24,613$                       (24,613)$                           

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (33,000)$                           
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies 33,000$                       -$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Travel 750$                             -$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Fees & Dues 3,100$                         -$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Education Reimbursement -$                              (500)$                                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Contract Services 2,500$                         -$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Cleaning Supplies -$                              (750)$                                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Advertising 2,200$                         -$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Equipment Expense -$                              (5,600)$                             
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Equipment Rent -$                              (1,700)$                             

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Parks & Recreation 41,550$                       (41,550)$                           

Golf Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (8,500)$                             
Golf Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Part-Time 8,500$                         -$                                   
Golf Felicia Brown Pro Shop Expense -$                              (4,500)$                             
Golf Felicia Brown Merchandise for Resale-GOLF 4,500$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Golf 13,000$                       (13,000)$                           

Non-Recurring Capital Outlay Catherine Gwynn Econ Devel-Mount Olive Pickle -$                              (50,000)$                           
Non-Recurring Capital Outlay Catherine Gwynn Econ Devel-Maxwell Center Property 50,000$                       -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Non-Recurring Capital Outlay 50,000$                       (50,000)$                           

Finance Fuel Inventory Catherine Gwynn Machine/Equipment Maintenance 10,000$                       -$                                   
Finance Fuel Inventory Catherine Gwynn Gasoline -$                              (10,000)$                           

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Finance Fuel Inventory 10,000$                       (10,000)$                           

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Travel -$                              (215)$                                 
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Fees & Dues 215$                             -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Stormwater 215$                             (215)$                                 

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (100)$                                 
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Vehicle Fuel 100$                             -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Water Reclamation 100$                             (100)$                                 

Compost Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (100)$                                 
Compost Bert Sherman Vehicle Fuel 100$                             -$                                   

Transfers - Jun 2024 - Compost 100$                             (100)$                                 
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jun 2024 204,832$                     (204,832)$                         
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2023-Jun 2024 1,308,640$                 (1,308,640)$                     

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_11.xlsx Transfers  Jun 7/7/2024 9:03 PM



Fund Name Date From For Amount

Police-Other Restricted Funds 7/20/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police-Other Restricted Funds 8/10/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police-Other Restricted Funds 9/12/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 100.00$          

200.00$          

Police-Other Restricted Funds 11/29/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police-Other Restricted Funds 12/13/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 51.00$            

Police-Other Restricted Funds 11/15/2023 Walmart Police Services 850.00$          
Police-Other Restricted Funds 11/22/2023 Walmart Police Services 750.00$          
Police-Other Restricted Funds 12/13/2023 Walmart Police Services 1,000.00$       

2,701.00$      

Police-Other Restricted Funds 1/9/2024 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police-Other Restricted Funds 2/8/2024 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police-Other Restricted Funds 3/12/2024 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police-Other Restricted Funds 3/27/2024 Phyllis Creech Police Services 1,000.00$       

Police-Other Restricted Funds 1/9/2024 Walmart Police Services 1,000.00$       

Parks & Recreation 2/9/2024 New Hope Ruritan Club Special Populations 100.00$          

Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund 2/9/2024 NCFC-Capital Area Soccer League  P & R 9,228.60$       

Fire Special Revenue Fund 2/14/2024 Haithcock, Barfield, Hulse & King PLLC Fire Services (Hook & Ladder Camp) 2,000.00$       
Fire Special Revenue Fund 3/13/2024 Seegars Fence Co Fire Services (Hook & Ladder Camp) 300.00$          
Fire Special Revenue Fund 2/14/2024 Doug Fisher Fire Services (Hook & Ladder Camp) 100.00$          

13,878.60$    

Police-Other Restricted Funds 4/3/2024 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            

Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund 4/19/2024 NCTA  P & R 4,000.00$       

Fire Special Revenue Fund 4/19/2024 Piedmont Natural Gas Fire Services (Hook & Ladder Camp) 1,000.00$       

5,050.00$      
21,829.60$    

Donations Received Report

Quarter & Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2024
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Totals

Fiscal Year to Date - Total Donations

FY23-24

Quarter 1 Ended 9/30/2023 - Total Donations

Quarter 2 Ended 12/31/2023 - Total Donations

Quarter 3 Ended 3/31/2024 - Total Donations

Quarter 4 Ended 6/30/2024 - Total Donations

Donations FY23-24.xlsx FY23-24 7/8/2024 11:13 AM



Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -May 2024

Reviewed: 

Granting Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description Source (Full) S Date Received
 Grant Portion 

Budget Amount  Budget Total x
 Current Amount 

Rec'd  
 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date x2

 Current Amount 
Spent  

 Amount Spent to 
Project to Date 

x
3

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow 
HUD CDBG FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F -$                       976$                      -$                       976$                      -$                       
HUD CDBG FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       -$                       3,626$                   (3,626)$                 
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                 19,523$                 -$                       19,523$                 -$                       19,705$                 (182)$                     
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$              353,346$              -$                       216,456$              -$                       219,747$              (3,291)$                 
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$              351,643$              -$                       170,649$              3,559$                   181,840$              (11,191)$               
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$              354,302$              -$                       87,559$                 -$                       87,559$                 (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$              358,697$              -$                       25,149$                 -$                       25,149$                 -$                       
HUD CDBG FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       -$                       25,371$                 (25,371)$               
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$              427,303$              -$                       133,792$              12$                        134,051$              (259)$                     
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                 22,201$                 -$                       22,201$                 -$                       22,201$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                 73,557$                 -$                       67,480$                 -$                       77,995$                 (10,515)$               
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                 22,910$                 -$                       22,910$                 -$                       22,910$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$              214,732$              -$                       49,554$                 -$                       53,683$                 (4,129)$                 
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$              245,547$              -$                       28,472$                 4,786$                   54,346$                 (25,874)$               
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$              252,710$              -$                       32,592$                 -$                       59,002$                 (26,410)$               
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$              280,171$              -$                       27,467$                 -$                       27,467$                 (0)$                         
HUD HOME FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       -$                       39,248$                 (39,248)$               
HUD HOME ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$              907,913$              -$                       36,436$                 177$                      43,542$                 (7,106)$                 

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 4,050$                   4,050$                   -$                       8,186$                   54$                        977$                      7,209$                   
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$           1,151,600$           -$                       1,151,600$           270$                      1,151,689$           (89)$                       
Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$         11,150,000$         -$                       376,000$              -$                       376,000$              -$                       

Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                 80,000$                 -$                       32,691$                 -$                       -$                       32,691$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$              632,943$              -$                       557,943$              -$                       251,072$              306,871$              

Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,050,596$           5,050,596$           -$                       5,046,649$           -$                       5,048,522$           (1,873)$                 
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,422,987$           6,422,987$           -$                       6,422,987$           -$                       6,422,987$           -$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 45,636$                 45,636$                 59,615$                 -$                       47,728$                 11,887$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 18,252$                 18,252$                 -$                       34,181$                 32,515$                 1,666$                   

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 150,000$              150,000$              -$                       152,338$              10$                        87,514$                 64,824$                 
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 274,138$              274,138$              -$                       311,638$              -$                       156,305$              155,333$              
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2023 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/26/2023 47,702$                 47,702$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 65,018$                 65,018$                 69,919$                 130$                      22,524$                 47,395$                 
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$           4,604,077$           -$                       4,982,838$           -$                       4,179,246$           803,592$              
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$           7,189,383$           -$                       7,385,809$           -$                       6,527,315$           858,494$              
UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$           8,813,514$           -$                       9,484,168$           -$                       8,813,514$           670,654$              

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$           9,083,790$           -$                       8,455,451$           -$                       8,519,172$           (63,721)$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 730,990$              730,990$              -$                       730,990$              -$                       730,990$              -$                       

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004State S 1/24/2022 300,000$              304,500$              -$                       302,300$              -$                       302,300$              -$                       
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$              101,500$              -$                       1,500$                   3,590$                   99,080$                 (97,580)$               

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$           1,594,366$           -$                       1,861,258$           23,381$                 1,498,635$           362,623$              
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install.Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                 265,513$              -$                       233,113$              -$                       265,513$              (32,400)$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$           6,029,395$           -$                       30,000$                 -$                       25,000$                 5,000$                   
City Fees None Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) (EPA) Private C 10/2/2003 2,037,500$           2,037,500$           -$                       2,037,500$           530,565$              797,606$              1,239,894$           

Total 66,583,842$         69,732,004$         -$                       50,669,888$         566,534$              46,454,622$         4,215,266$           

Prepared: tlw 6/5/2024 1:18 PM

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2024-06 Jun_0.xlsx Grants 2024-05 May 7/8/2024 11:09 AM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
June 2024 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: July 3, 2024  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 100% of the time. 0% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:17.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred for 97% of all calls.   
 

  25% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days. 
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 1 Fire Service injury and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Sprinkler Fun Days, Safety Day at Cherry Hospital, Center Street Jam, Smoke Alarm Installs, Station 
Tours, and Truck Displays. We reached 396 Adults and 178 Children with fire prevention materials.  
 

 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2024 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 412 365 427 420 425 417       411 2466 

Structure Fires: 4 6 5 0 1 2       3 18 

EMS Calls: 236 202 249 243 217 224       229 1371 

Vehicle Accidents: 27 33 49 40 46 38       38 233 

Fire Alarms: 50 44 49 58 66 47       52 314 

Other: 95 80 75 79 95 106       90 540 

Training Hours: 3307 3887 2958 2815 2239 2125       2889 17331 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 6 1 2 2 1       2 13 

Inspections: 131 150 169 157 150 128       148 885 

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389 415 376 420 409 475 334 4014 
Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4 4 7  4 8 4 5 55 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203 195 192 215 205 270 157 1889 
Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31 39 42 45 41 37 35 425 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67 73 61 68 54 73 50 599 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84 104 74 92 101 91 82 982 
Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707 1680 1593 1688 1507 1003 2025 24301 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 4 4 0 0 4 0 0 3 25 
Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105 130 156 93 167 133 126 1384 



 

1 

Information Technology  
June 2024 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: July 10, 2024 
 

• Assisted GPD with presentation recording and editing. 
• Staff attended phone system administrator training. 
• Setup additional cameras at the Water Treatment Plant. 
• Replaced monitors at the Police Department. 
• Repaired lift station communication issue. 
• Setup touchscreen computer in GEC for sales during events. 
• Supported event at Herman Park Center. 
• Supported Saving Union Station event. 
• Supported Staff Wellness Event at the Hub. 
• Supported Special Council Meeting. 
• Updated security certificates. 
• WRF gate access repairs. 
• Wireless setup and drone flights for Jamz Out Juneteenth. 
• Replaced monitors at the Police Department. 
• Resolved GIS Filed Maps issues. 
• Resolves Utility Billing issues. 
• Updated software for Finance. 
• Sent phone call/message related to flushing. 
• Removed surplus IT equipment. 
• Removed old cable equipment from Fire Stations. 
• Reconfigured IT rack/cables at the Compost Plant. 
• One staff member received a certification. 
• Configured computers for GWTA. 
• Updated DGDC Sculptures site. 
• Setup in-car camera systems for police. 
• Replaced microphones in Large Conference Room. 

 
2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

801 817 708 965 592 499       730 4382 

Tickets 
Closed 

819 838 714 963 580 523       740 4437 

Open  
Tickets 

329 412 306 351 359 359       353  

 
 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710 722 694 847 676 585 728 8,731 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746 701 693 769 696 576 731 8,770 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258 279 280 358 338 347 332  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
June 2024 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 07/03/24 
 
The valuation of all permits issued (Residential, Commercial, & Miscellaneous) for June totaled $12,892,271. New 
Residential permits are included in this valuation. Significant projects this month: New Wawa Convenience store 
located at 2853 W. US Hwy 70 at $4.2M and 14 new single-family dwellings at $2.3M. 
 
The valuation of all buildings (Residential & Commercial) permits totaled $9,667,214. Miscellaneous permits 
(plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire, etc.) are not included. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $35,979.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,440 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $4,205. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $21,020. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 740 inspections for the month.  During the month of June, seven (7) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 319 permits were issued for the month.    Sixty-four (64) plan reviews were 
completed for June. 
 
 
 

 
 

2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $21.3 $7.5 $5.7 $17.5 $10.3 $12.9 $12.5
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $11.4 $3.8 $2.5 $11.7 $7.7 $9.7 $7.8
New Residential $ (M) $3.0 $898K $624K $870K $1.1 $2.3 $1.5
Misc $ (M) $10.0 $3.6 $3.2 $5.8 $2.6 $3.2 $4.7
Permit Fee $ (K) $53 $65 $38 $43 $48 $36 $47
Inspections 798 741 918 738 735 740 778
Permits Issued 361 295 301 383 337 319 333
Plan Reviews 68 68 45 24 45 64 52

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $7.6 $36.5 $59.7 $11.8 $19.5 $20.3 $27.6 $23.2
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $5.3 $25.8 $48.6 $7.7 $16.1 $14.4 $15.7 $16.4
New Residential $ (M) $1.5 $652K $2.8 $2.6 $4.1 $2.9 $4.3 $3.5 $1.4 $3.5 $2.8 $85K $2.5
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $2.3 $10.7 $11.2 $4.2 $3.4 $5.9 $11.8 $6.7
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $35 $61 $81 $53 $98 $49 $74 $56
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 781 709 747 827 887 780 676 693
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 348 359 463 366 364 354 316 364
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 58 75 74 107 110 66 77 70



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
June 2024 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 7/5/2024 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
 

• June activity included 20 rental/use days, including 18 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

• Recital – MRAD 
• Recital – Gotta Dance 
• Recital – Arts Co. 
• Recital – ADA 
• Recital – AIM 
• Recital – In Motion 
• We Are The World Graduation 
• Moises Miranda Music Graduation 

o DH attended 2 conferences (partially underwritten by arts and foundation grants) 
o Floors stripped and refinished by staff 

 
• June cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 0 days, 0 public performances. 
• Repairs, Maintenance, Issues:  

o All Maintenance, Inspections, Licensing, and Service complete and up to date 
o Wheelchair lift replacement requested in 2025 budget, not yet approved. 
o HVAC controls upgrade requested in 2025 budget, not yet approved. 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $145,359:   Labor: $30,339 / Operations: $7,457 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $107,563 
  

Revenues: $136,803:  Tickets: $118,238 / Building Rentals: $13,361 / Concession: $5,204  
   

      
 

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 FY 24 Total Average

Exp $25,165 $64,018 $37,664 $62,732 $102,055 $124,902 $48,590 $77,450 $151,532 $62,388 $64,071 $145,359 $965,926 $80,494

Rev $15,366 $13,492 $19,419 $31,322 $67,792 $98,965 $43,947 $71,743 $52,220 $53,068 $38,650 $136,803 $642,787 $53,566

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $100,423 $110,336 $849,210 $70,768

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $77,666 $71,398 $542,394 $45,200



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
June Monthly Report  
Prepared By: Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 7/5/2024 

• Several Parks and Recreation staff received their (re)certification in CPR/1st Aid/AED this month 
 

• Peacock Pool had over 3,500 visitors in June; 13 participants took part in swim lessons              
 

• Youth Sports Camps and Summer Day Camps kicked off this month – each week offered in June full 
 

• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted eighteen (18) events – 2,147 guests and eight (8) City of Goldsboro 
events – 265 guests  
 

• GEC turn away 10 events which equals $11,600 in potential revenue not gained due to previous bookings  
 

•  2,345 rounds of Golf this month  
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted St. Mary’s Tournament on June 12th – 59 golfers 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted Southeastern Seniors Golf play on June 27th – 51 players 
 

• Karaoke with Specialized Recreation held on June 18th – 63 participants 
 

• Senior Tea Party held on June 27th – 18 participants  
 

• Senior Card Group Play at T.C. Coley Community Center – 132 participants 
 

• Line Dancing is held on Mondays and Thursdays at T.C. Coley Community Center – 149 participants 
 

• Neighborhood watch meetings continue to be held at TC Coley Community Center 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in June met 2 dates – 31 participants.  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 195 visitors  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during June –627 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff. 

 
 



 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                         
Rental Revenue $6,484 $26,818  $10,194 $15,938  $19,325 $13,629             $15,398 
Facility Usage 1488 1788  2,072  1850  2210  2412             1970 
Expenditures $14,632 $34,260  $19,026  $12,484  $18,058 $13,457             $18,653 
                            
WA Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $710 $380  $570  $490  $430 $7,725             $1,718 
Rental Revenue $425 $1,050  $1,190  $1,475  $3,462 $1,763             $1,561 
Facility Usage 3368 2166  2305  2383  2708 2159              2515 
Expenditures $14,075 $14,460  $14,225  $14,470  $14,980 $22,610              $15,803 
T.C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $1,742 $1,271  $787  $433   $586 $130             $825 
Rental Revenue $570 $1,150  $835  $530  $490 $550             $688 
Facility Usage 343 750  537  542  407 394             496 
Expenditures $5,662 $5,866  $5,780  $5,905 $5,205 $5,540             $5,660 
                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0  $0 $0              $0 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0  $0 $0             $0 
Facility Usage 168 144  126  138  527 155              210 
Expenditures $2,364 $2,952 $3,298  $3,116  $5,160 $4,482             $3,562 
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $0  $125  $0  $50 $8,491             $1,444 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0 $0 $525             $88 
Facility Usage 113 170  211  142  289 3967             815 
Expenditures $2,475 $2,594 $3,685  $3,980  $4,140 $15,135             $5,335 
                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $14,100 $15,090  $19,807  $60  $6,500 $4,760             $10,053 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $1,325  $0  $375 $600              $383 
Facility Usage 36,489 37,080  37,195  39,417  41,484 44,287              39,325 
Expenditures $16,198 $16,363  $16,420  $16,865 $17,676 $37,716             $20,206 
                            
Golf Course                         
Revenues $36,586 $53,758  $62,463  $80,212  $81,257 $86,468             $66,791 
Expenditures $48,038 $52,214  $52,886  $47,582  $78,744 $63,177              $57,107 
Rounds of Golf 938 1487  1493  2,675  2343  2345             1880 
Net -$11,452 $1,544  $9,577  $32,629   $2,512 $23,291             $9,684 
                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / 
Sponsorships 

$0 $2,430  $0  $0  $1,650  $0             $680 

Participation 0 454  1606   1094  110  0             544 
Expenditures $0 $4,080  $536  $760  $1,700  $0             $1,179 
                            
TOTAL REVENUE $60,617 $101,947  $97,296  $99,138  $109,798 $124641             $98,906 
TOTAL EXPENSES $103,444 $132,789 $115,856  105,162  $145,663 $162117             $127,505 
TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $593,437          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $765,031           

  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441 $11,359  $12,152 $30,435 $9,465 $9,609  $13,162  $18,076  $16,274 

Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065   2165  2016 2536  1921  1315  1400   1985 1971 

Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627 $17,384  $8,527  $9,749 $14,049  $22,354  $65,822  $23,045 $16,953 

                            
W. A. Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165 $14,570   $825 $230 $1,210  $1,180  $630 $520 $2,461 

Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625 $308   $2,195 $603  $1,085 $1,695  $1,013  $238 $1,212 

Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983 1546   2077 1942 2013  2935  2650 1834 2243 

Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585 $26,741  $19,668 $17,541 $10,287 $10,179 $10,033 $9,940  $13,053 

                            
T. C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250 $167  $211 $237 $200  $164 $117  $220  $334 

Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450 $1,015 $1,015 $80 $490 $710 $550  $450  $689 

Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210 154   177 197   175 314  218  199 190 

Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644 $14,466  $6,706 $9,164  $6,005  $6,258 $5,127 $6,166  $5,827 

                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $36   $18 $0  $0 $0 $124 $0  $15 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $0  $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45  74  166 184   134 373 126   94 147 

Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462 $11,736  $8,627  $5,612  $4,477  $5,627  $2,856 $4,180  $6,643 

Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11 $4,082 $8,749  $3,408 $930 $0 $455  $595  $1,546 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $400  $875  $700 $774 $0 $0 $0 $229 

Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212 2383 2720  2025  175 164  158 142  742 

Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927 $20,543 $21,611  $15,760  $5,088 $1,245 $3,103  $3,057 $7,777 

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780  $2,565  $45 $25,540  $1,605  $5,000 $9,920  $4,520  $9,729 

Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900 $0  $0  $1,950  $450 $350 $0 $300 $848 

Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285 21222  14380   15290 20025  25168 31089 32789  23150 

Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456 $33,132 $7,678  $14,900 $12,629 $64,318 $18,436  $14,576  $17,662 

                            
Golf Course                         

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560  $73,812  $61,821  $63,590 $57,788  $52,418  $41,483  $38,898  $51,776 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315 $60,208 $31,528 $83,528  $46,397 $56,788 $315,953  $67,229 $75,265 

Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309  2120 2110  2076  2153   1825 1227   1079 1868 

Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245  $13,603 $30,293  -$19,938  $11,391  -$4,370 $274,470 $28,331  -$23,489 

                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / 
Sponsorships 

$0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600 $1,730 $1,659  $0 $0  $285 $0  $0  $606 

Participation 0 200 70 152  160 101   101  0 0 42  55  7500 698 

Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170 $2,194 $1,551   $0 $0  $1,443 $2,151  $1,649  $1,141 

                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782  $110,044  $89,565 $126,773 $73,997 $71,411 $67,454  $63,817  $85,270 

TOTAL EXPENSES $95,883 $81,544 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186 $186,404  $105896 $156,254 $98,932 $168212 $423481  $129842  $144,385 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $1,023,235           

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,732,616           

 



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
June 2024 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  July 8, 2024  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for June 2023 was 202, compared to 190 for June 2024. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $282,738 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $123,875 was recovered and property damaged was $69,926. 
 
Officers arrested 73 people and issued 223 citations during the month. There were 8 drug-related 
charges.  
There were 4 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 3 1 3       8  
Rape 3       0   0  1 1 1                     6  
Robbery 3 2    6  1 0 10        22  
Aggravated Assault 21 15 20 13 21 24       114  
Breaking & Entering 22 38  23  21 33  27              164  
Larceny 159 96     145    114 156  111          781  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  6 13  8 14  14             65  
Arson 0 0 2  0  0  0          2  
TOTALS 219 157 209  161  226  190           1162  

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0  3  0  2 10  
Rape 0 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 8  
Robbery 2 1 4 1 5 4 2 6 4 4 6 9 48  
Aggravated Assault     15 17 26 16 20 17 23 23 22 22 28 17 246  
Breaking & Entering 22 16 12 18 29 24 30 28 27 25 39 30 300  
Larceny 112 88 110 114 160 148 135 162 131 153 137 142 1592  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10 10 16 12 9 9 23 22 16 16 16 13 172  
Arson 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 2 0 6  
TOTALS 161 134 170 165 226 202 213 241 202 224 230 214 2382  

 

Revenue collected for June 2024 included:    

       

 
Police Reports                                                                         
Parking Tickets   $ 

    933.00 
  450.00  

 Fingerprints   $      50.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $       0.00  
                          Total                $         1,433.00    
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
June 2024 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: July 3, 2024 
 

Water Treatment Plant 
• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. Currently at 44% capacity. 
• Capital Projects: Replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the NRPS. Replace flow meters at the WTP. 
• The Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed and certified. 
• The intake structure screen at the Neuse River has damage to it and needs to be replaced. Staff are in the 

process of contracting with engineering service (Hazen and Sawyer for design, permitting, and putting this 
repair and dredging out for bid. 

 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow for 

April is 5.74-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.25-MGD. This puts the WRF at 58% capacity. 
• All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
• Capital projects: Generator at Westbrook L/S and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry System. 
• WRF is fully staffed, and 3 poisons are seeking certification. 
• Sand Media replacement has been completed. Contract cost ($142,795) 
• CIP Project: Telemetry system Radio replacement has been completed. Contract cost ($313,588) 

 

Compost Facility 
• Seven hundred and eighty-five cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in June 2024. 
• 2 Compost operators with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 
• The engine for the wood grinder has been replaced. Contract cost ($221,653).  

 

 
 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average daily flows for each month. 
 
 

2024 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.95 5.88 5.84 5.97 6.05 7.19       6.15 
Sewer** 10.63 8.17 8.91 7.91 8.11 5.74       8.25 

Compost 161 866 970 1156 542 785       747 
*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29 6.30 6.04 6.10 5.96 5.69 6.00 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69 8.82 9.76 7.27 7.33 9.59 8.66 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866 822 845 226 1432 659 367 748 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
17.5 8.5 18.7 16.9 62.4 14.7 23.1
1.8 2.4 1.1 1.8 2.7 1.0 1.8
52 25 18 22 22 24 27.2
21 16 13 20 19 21 18.3
1 3 1 2 3 1 1.8
5 5 1 7 5 4 4.5

33 37 29 30 13 22 27.3
0 0 0 20 21 50 15.2
15 10 35 25 10 20 19.2

248 255 235 207 248 189 230.3

1.11 1.03 1.02 1.18 1.25 1.10 1.116
19 15 16 0 0 0 8.3
0.8 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.7 0.6 0.649

Cemetery Funerals 6 2 3 1 6 3 3.5

2 15 51 40 14 26 24.7
73 62 100 188 74 59 92.7

270.4 300 310 356.1 369.9 314.3 320.1
0.35 8.30 4.03 8.46 0.77 1.18 3.8
0.00 0.00 0.00 5.08 7.81 1.15 2.3
6 4 4 7 2 2 4.2

10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 20.7 16.4 19.2 23.1 7.4 16.6
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4 2.0 1.1 1 1 2.7
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23 17 29 36 24 24.7
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 24 11 13 17 18 16.0
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 1 1 3 4 3 3.8
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 4 7 6 4 3 5.3

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 28 42 27 45 28 41.5
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 104 51 10 0 0 41.3
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 103 166 60 20 0 79.4

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 232 228 230 184 147 225.6
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       87$       92$       79$       74$       53$       61$       76.1

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.14 1.04 1.07 1.00 1.10 1.1
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 13 23 0 29 40 28.9
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 1 3 5 0 6 3.3

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 25 11 5 4 0 14.1
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 40 34 153 92 195 100.8
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 275.9 277 300 254.6 208.4 198.7
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.95 1.29 4.1 1.43 0.4 1.7
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 11.80 18.41 15.56 25.16 0.00 11.3
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 1 1 3 3 3 2.5

Public Works Department
June 2024
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared:  03 July 2024

2023

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage Total Work Orders

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2024

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds:   Repaired several lighting issues, plumbing issues and furniture assembly.  Added 
two new employees which increased the mowing production.  Supported 2 Center St. Jams, Save Union Station Event, Wayne 
County Arts Market, Juneteenth Event, Caper Chase Run and Mural ribbon cutting.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 14 after hour calls--total of 19.5 hours. Completed 97 work orders.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 759 potholes, 7 trees in roadway, 187 sq. yds. concrete sidewalk.   620 LF of small 
ditches cleaned, Swept 314 curb miles, Jet Rod 3,070 LF storm pipe, cleaned 2 Manholes and 7 Catch Basins, 6 Hours 
of Call Duty. Repaired 1 storm water cave ins, Virginia Steet stormdrain project at 95% complete with drainage 
construction;  road and curb repair on Murray street start next week.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
June 2024 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 7/02/2024 
 

• Total hotel revenue generated in May was $2,264,942 which is down -8.5% YOY. June 

revenue has not yet been released. 

• The “likes/follows” campaign with Compass Media resulted in 1,752 likes for the Facebook 

page. The campaign also drove 3,348 post engagements, 786 post reactions, 23 comments, 

and 59 shares this month. Our new Facebook page has reached 3200 followers. June 

numbers are not yet available. 

• Zoom call with 57 Marketing 

• Attended Ribbon Cutting for new Goldsboro, NC mural downtown 

• Freedom Fest Marketing Meeting with Doug McGrath 

• 916th Family Day Zoom call with SJAFB and the Chamber 

• Monthly GTC/TDA Meeting 

 

 

 

  
City Occupancy Tax Collections 

June Figures Have Not Been Released 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2023-24 $90,771 $96,122 $82,030 $83,980 $88,871 $64,393 $92,315 $69,845 $72,017 $78,978 $97,744   $83,369 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324 $100,063 $1,044,224 $87,018 

 
 




